BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
STATE OF FLORIDA

JOINT APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL
OF MERGER BETWEEN NETWORK
LONG DISTANCE, INC., NETWORK CASE NO.
ACQUISITION CORP. AND EASTERN
TELECOM INTERNATIONAL

APPLICATION

Network Long Distance, Inc. ("Network") and Eastern Telecom International Corporation
("Eastern")referred to jointly as "Applicants”), pursuant to the applicable Statutes of Florida and the
Commission's Rules and Regulations currently in effect and/or subsequently enacted, hereby request
Commission approval of a proposed Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Agreement”)'. As will be
described in more detail below, the Agreement sets forth & merger of Eastern and Network
Acquisition Corp. ("Acquisition"), following which Eastern will be the surviving entity, Acquisition
will cease to exist, and Eastern will continue to operate its business in all respects as it currently
operates. As a further result of the Agreement, Eastern will become a wholly owned subsidiary of
Network. As regulated telecommunications providers, Network and Eastern hereby scek Commission
approval of the Agreement.

Commission approval of the proposed Agreement will be beneficial to the involved companies

as well as their customers, Following consummation of the Agreement, both Network and Eastern

: A draft copy of the Agreement and Plan of Merger is attached as Exhibit "A". Note that in Exhibit
"A* Network Is referred to as Water, Eastern s referred to as Steam and Acquisition is referred to as Acquisition.
Should the Commission so request, a copy of the final Agreement will be substituted following its preparation.
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will be able to provide communications services o its customers in a more efficient manner. Approval
of the proposed Agreement will not in any way be detrimental to the public interests of the State of
Florida. The customers of Eastern will continue to receive the same high quality service presently
rendered to them. Additionally, no party to the Agreement will be given undue advantage over any
other party.

In support of this Application, Applicants show the following:

I. THE PARTIES

L. Network Long Distance, Inc. is a publicly held Delaware corporation with principal
offices located at 525 Florida Street, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801. Network is a non-dominant
carrier which resells domestic and international long distance service purchased from various facilitics
based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier policies.

2, Network is authorized by the FCC to offer domestic interstate and international
services in all fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia as a non-dominant carrier. Network
currently originates interstate traffic in forty-nine (49) states, and provides intrastate service, pursuant
to certification, registration or tariff requirements, or on an unregulated basis, in forty-nine (49)
states. Network is a certified carrier in the State of Florida.”

3. Eastern Telecom Intermnational Corporation is a privately held Virginia corporation
with principal offices located at 11817 Canon Boulevard, Suite 600, Newport News, Virginia 23606.
Eastern is a non-dominant carrier which resells domestic and international long distance service

purchased from various facilities based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier policies.

’ In Florids, Network provides intrastate telecommunications services pursuant to Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity bearing Certificate Number 3178 issued in matter entitied "Application form for Authority
to Provide Interexchangs Telecommunications Service Within the Stace of Florida,” Docket Number 930249-T1; Order
Number PSC-93-0857-FOF-TI, effective date June 30, 1993.
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in all fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia as a non-dominant carrier. Eastern currently
originates interstate traffic in twenty-six (26) states, and provides intrastate service, pursuant to
certification, regis‘ration or tariff requirements, or on an unregulated basis, in twenty-six (26) states.
Eastern is a certified carrier in the State of Florida, where it does business under the trade name of
Eastern Telecom Corp. of Virginia.’

5. Network Acquisition Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of Network which was
formed solely to effect the merger of Acquisition with and into Eastern in accordance with the
Agreement, upon consummation of which Eastern will become a wholly owned subsidiary of
Network and Acquisition will ceasz to exist. Acquisition has otherwise conducted no prior activities.

II. DESIGNATED CONTACT
6. The designated contact for questions concerning this Application is:
Edward P. Gothard, Esquire
Nowalsky & Bronston
3500 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1442
Metairie, Louisiana 70002
(504) 832-1008
(504) B32-1984

7 Copies of any correspondence related to this filing should be sent to:

Tim Barton, President
Network Long Distance, Inc.
7000 Squibb, Suite 310
Mission, Kansas 66202
(913) 262-3730

. In Florida, Eastern provides intrastate telecommunications services using the trade name Eastern
Telecom Corp. of Virginia pursuant to Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity bearing Certificate Number
2966, issued in matter entitied "Application for Authority to Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Service in
Florida,” Docket Number 920110-T1; Order Number PSC-92-0394-FOF-TI, +Zactive date June 17, 1992.
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and
Janet Moore, Regulatory Affairs Officer
Eastern Telecom International Corporation
11817 Canon Boulevard
Suite 600
Newport News, Virginia 23606
(804) 873-1040

1Il. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF
THE AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

8. hhpﬁmﬂmNﬂu&Mm@dhmMmmﬁﬁmm
companies which provide intrastate telecommunication services pursuant to Certificates of Public
Convenience and Necessity in various states. In this instance, Network proposes to continue to
operate the acquired entity as an independent, but wholly owned, subsidiary. By virtue of these
transactions, Network will realize significant economic, marketing and administrative efficiencies,
allowing Network 1o serve its customers, including those in the State of Florida, in a more efficient
and cost effective manner.

9. As a company providing intrastate telecommunications service directly in forty-nine
(49) states, with annual operating revenues of approximately sixty million ($60,000,000) dollars,
Network is well-qualified to consummate the transaction which is the subject of this Application.
Current financial information for Network is attached hereto as Exhibit "B".*

10.  Eastemn, which provides intrastate telecommun_cations service directly in twenty-six

(26) states, has annual operating revenues of approximately sixteen million, one hundred twenty one

‘ Exhibit “B* is the Form 10-Q submitted to the SEC by Netwurk for the quarter ended December 31,
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thousand ($16,121,000) dollars based upon information for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1996.
Current financial information for Eastern is attached hereto as Exhibit "C".’
11.  Applicants accordingly propose a transaction which will accomplish the following:
a Acquisition will merge with and into Eastern;

b. As a result of the merger, the separate corporate existence of Acquisition shall
cease and Eastern shall continue as the surviving corporation;

¢ Eastern shall continue to operate as a regulated entity pursuant to its present
certifications, registrations, tariff requirements and rate structures, or on an
unregulated basis, as provided by and pursuant to applicable law;

d. As a result of the merger Network will own all of the issued and outstanding
shares of the common stock of Eastern; and

e. The stockholders of Eastern will reccive a designated number of shares of the
common stock of Network as provided for in the Agreement.*

12. It is respectfully represented herein that the transfer of stock as outlined above
represents transactions made for fair and due consideration to the stockholders of both Network and
Eastern, and that no party to the Agreement, including the stockholders of the participating
companies, will be given undue advantage over any other party to the Agreement.

13.  The technical, managerial and financial personnel of Eastern will remain the same after
the transaction, and the customers of Eastern will b« provided services with the same high level of
expertise currently in place.

14. Tl:pnctia]cﬂ'ecloﬂhemguisnchmgcinomnhipuf_ﬂwcomanutockof

Eastern. Eastern will continue to operate in all respects as it presently operates.

‘ Exhibit “C* consists of Eastern's Income Statement and Balance Sheet dated January 31, 1996.
. Note that the exact financial details of the Agreement have been redacted from Exhibit “A.” Should

this Commission desire to know the financial details of the transaction, this information will be provided to the
Commission for in camera inspection.

Page -5-




15. Because the transaction will effect a transfer of control of the stock of Eastern,
permission for the Agreement is respectfully sought herein.
iV. PUBLIC INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS
16.  Critical to the proposed transaction is the need to ensure the continuation of high
quaﬁtysuvhemdlmcmmﬂymadbybothmlﬂnmdeThpmpowd
transaction will serve the public interest for the following reasons:

a First, the transaction will enhance the operating efficiencies, including market
efficiencies, of both Network and Eastern;

b. Second, it will increase the appeal to present and potential customers of both
Network and Eastern as these entities can provide communications services
to their customers in a more efficient manner;

c. Finally, it may result in cost savings because of discounts on quantity ordering
of materials and services for both Eastern and Network.

17.  Accordingly, the requested transaction will serve to create a heightened level of
operating efficiency which generally will serve to enhance the overall capacity of Network and
Eastern to compete in the marketplace and to provide telecommunications services for Florida

customers at competitive rates.
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VY. CONCLUZION
18.  WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated herein, Applicants respectfully request that the
Commission authorize the consummation of the Agreement and merger as described above.

DATED this 23rd_ day of April, 1997.

Respectfully submitted,

Wit unr

Edward P, Gothard, Esquire
Nowalsky & Bronston

3500 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1442

Metairie, Louisiana 70002

(504) 832-1008

(504) 832-1984
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From: Edward P. Gothard To: Tim Baron Dete 41007 Time: 12:11:34 PM Page Jol4

STATE OF KANSAS

COUNTY OF Jonnso~

YERIFICATION

I, Tim Barton, am the President of Network Long Distance, Inc., and am authorized to make
this verification on its behalf. The statements made in the foregoing Application are true of my own
knowledge, except as to those matters which are therein stated on information and belief, and as to

those matters | believe them to be true.

Swom to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and for the State and County named

sbove, this /& dayof _(Zpacl . 1997.
a4

Notary Public

-

My Commission expires: { - <7 - "'?‘9




APR 16 '97 12:25PM NOWALSKYSRBRONSTON .2

I, Thomas G. Keefe, am the Treasurer, Vice President and Chief Finsncial Officer of Eastern
Telecom International Corporation, and am suthorized to make this verification on fta behalf. The

statements made in the foregoing Application are trus of my own knowledge, except as to those
matters which sre therein stated on information and belief, and as to those matters [ believe them to

be true.
By:
N G.
Title: Treasurer, and Chief Financial Officer
Sworn to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and for the State and County named
-bow.mul{a_uyuf_ﬁpale
Notary Public / v



EXHIBIT "A"

AGREEMENT AND PLAN
OF MERGER

NOTE: THE ATTACHED IS A DRAFT DOCUMENT .
NETWORK IS REFERRED TO AS "WATER",
EASTERN TELECOM IS REFERRED TO AS "STEAM".




AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER
BY AND AMONG
WATER, INC.,
WATER ACQUISITION CORP.,
STEAM, INC.,
AND

THE SHAREHOLDERS OF STEAM, INC.,

APRIL _ , 1997
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¢ " AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER I e

;/ TMSAGRMTANDHANOF!\{ERGER(M “ Agreement”) is made and entered
into as of the __ day of April, 1997, by and among WATER, INC., a Delaware corporation
(“WATER"), WATER ACQUISITION CORP., 2 Virginia corporation (* Acquisition”),
STIAM, INC., a Virginia corporation (“STEAM"), and the shareholders of STEAM who have
executed this Agreement (collectively, the “Shareholders™).

WHEREAS, STEAM is engaged in the business of providing communications services;

WHEREAS, WATER has formed Acquisition as a wholly-owned subsidiary in order to
effect the merger of Acquisition with and into STEAM (the “Merger”) in accordance with this
Agreement and in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia so that, upon
consummation of the Merger, STEAM will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of WATER, and
Acquisition will cease 10 exist;

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the parties that the Merger qualify as a reorganization under
Section 368(a)(1)(A) and 368(a)(2NE) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code"™);

WHEREAS, this Agreement has been approved ty the respective boards of directors of
WATER, Acquisition and STEAM; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire 10 induce each other to enter into this Agreement by
making certain representations, warranties and covenants contained herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mufual agreements,
covm.@m.mmmmfmmmmmaﬁwmmu

terms and conditions of the Merger, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
THE MERGER

Section 1.1 The Merger. Atthe Effective Time (as defined in Section 1.2), upon the
wnmmdmh}uctmth:mndiﬂouhuwf.mdinmrdmuwhhﬂ:thinhSmck Corporation
Act (*VSCA"), Acquisition will be merged with and into STEAM in the Merger whercupon
STEAM shall continue as the surviving corporation (the *Surviving Corporation”), and the
scparate corporate existence of Acquisition shall cease.

Section 1.2  Effective Time. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Merger
shall be consummated on the Closing Date (as defined in Section 2.1), and simultancously
mmmwumuwhmm.mwmmm”wmmmm of Merger
(the *Articles of Merger™) with the Virginia State Corporation Commission, in such form as is
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required by, and executed in accordance with, the relevant provisions of the VSCA and shall be
effective at such time as such Articles of Merger have been 5o filed with the Virginia State
Corporation Commission and the Virginia State Corporation Commission has accepted for record
the Articles of Merger and issued a Certificate of Merger pursuant to Section 13.1-176 of the
VSCA (the “Effective Time").

Section 1.3  Effects of the Merger. The Merger shall have the effects set forth in
Section 13.1-176 of the VSCA.

Section 1.4  Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. The Articles of Incorporation and
the Bylaws of Acquisition as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the Articles
of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter amended as
provided by law.

Section 1.5 Officers and Directors. The officers and directors of STEAM as of the
Effective Time shall be the officers and directors of the Surviving Corporation and will hold office
from the Effective Time until their respective successors are duly elected or appointed and
qualified in the manner provided in the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Surviving
Corporation or as otherwise provided by law.

Section 1.6 Further Actions. At any after the Effective Time, the Surviving
Corporation shall take all action as shall be required in connection with the Merger, including,
but not limited to, the execution and delivery of any further deeds, assignments, instruments or
documentation as are necessary or desirable to carry out the provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE I1
CONVERSION AND EXCHANGE
OF SHARES, CLOSING

Section 2.1 Conversion and Exchange of Shares. As of the Effective Time, by virtue

of the Merger and without any action on the part of any holder of any shares of common stock,
no par value, of STEAM (the “STEAM Common™):

(a) All shares of STEAM Common which are held by STEAM shall be
cancelled and retired and shall cease to exist and no stock of WATER or other
consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor. All shares of preferred siock of
STEAM which re.aain outstanding at the Effective Time shall be cancelled and retired and
shall cease to exist and no stock of WATER or other consideration shall be delivered in
exchange therefor. Each share of common stock, $.01 par value, of Acquisition shall
become a share of the Surviving Corporation's common stock.




(b) At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on
the part of WATER, STEAM or the holders of any shares of the STEAM Common, (i)
cach share of STEAM Common, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective
Time which under the terms of Section 2.1(d) is to be converted into the right to receive
a number of shares of common stock, par value $.0001 per share of WATER (the
“WATER Common”) shall be converted into the right to receive a number of shares of
WATER Common equal to the Exchange Ratio (as hereinafier defined) (collectively, the
“Share Consideration™), and (ii) each share of STEAM Common issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time which under the terms of Section 2.1(d) is to be
converted into the right to receive cash shall be converted into the right to receive an
amount in cash equal to the Per Share Consideration (the “Cash Consideration,” and
together with the Share Consideration, the “Merger Consideration™). All shares of
STEAM Common to be converted into shares of WATER Common or the right to receive
cash pursuant to this Section 2.1(b) are hereinafter referred to as the “Converted Shares.”
The Exchange Ratio shall mean a number of shares of WATER Common determined by
dividing (x) the Per Share Consideration by (y) the WATER Average Closing Price (as
hereinafter defined), and rounding the result to three decimal places, provided, however,
that the Exchange Ratio shall not be greater than 6,707.12 nor less than 6,300.63. The
WATER Average Closing Price shall mean the average daily closing price per share,
rounded to three decimal places, of WATER Common as reported through the National
Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation System SmallCap Market for the
twenty consecutive trading days ending on (and including) the 4ay this Agreement is
publicly announced pursuant to the terms hereof, provided, however, that the WATER
Average Closing Price shall not exceed $8.25 nor be less than $7.75. The Per Share
Consideration shall be equal o NN divided by the number of issued and
outstanding shares of STEAM Common at the Effective Time.

(c) As soon as practicable following execution of this Agreement, and in no
event less than one day prior to the Closing Date, WATER will send to each holder of
Converted Shares a cash election form (the “Election Form™) and other appropriate
materials providing for such Shareholder, all in form reasonably satisfactory to STEAM,
subject to the provisions of Section 2.1(d), (i) to elect to receive the Share Consideration
with respect to all or any portion of such Shareholder's shares of STEAM Common
(*Share Election™) or (ii) to elect to receive the Cash Consideration with respect to all or
any portion of such Shareholder's shares of STEAM Common (“Cash Election™). As of
the Election Deadline (as hereinafier defined), any shares of STEAM Common with
respect to which no submission to a designee of WATER (the “Exchange Agent”) of an
effective, properly completed Election Form has been made shall be deemed to be “No-
Election Shares.”

(i) Any election to receive the Cash Consideration or the Share
consideration shall have been validly made only if the Exchange Agent shall have
received by 8:00 a.m., Kansas City time, on the day prior to the Closing Date (the

OMAHA-18409.) 3




“Election Deadline”) an Election Form properly completed. An election by a
Shareholder shall be validly made only if the Exchange Agent shall have received
an Election Form properly completed and executed by such Sharcholder. WATER
shall have the right to make reasonable determinations and to establish reasonable
procedures (not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement) in guiding the
Exchange Agent in its determination as to the validity of Election Forms and of
any revision, revocation or withdrawal thereof.

(ii)  Any Shareholder who has made an election by submitting an
Election Form to the Exchange Agent may at any time prior to the Election
Deadline change such Shareholder's election by submitting a revised Election
Form, properly completed and signed, that is received by the Exchange Agent
prior to the Election Deadline. Any Shareholder may at any time prior to the
Election Deadline revoke such Sharcholder's election by written notice to the
Exchange Agent received at any time prior to the Election Deadline.

(d)  As soon as practicable after the Election Leadiine (the ~ Allocation Date™),

the Exchange Agent shall effectuate the allocation among Shareholders of rights to receive
the Share Consideration or the Cash Consideration in the Merger in accordance with the
terms of this Section 2.1(d). As is more fully set forth below, the number of shares of
STEAM Common to be converted in the Merger into the right to receive cash may not
exceed $1,500,000.00 divided by the WATER Average Closing Price (the “Maximum
Cash Election Shares™).

OMAHA-18409.3

(i) The Exchangg Ageit shall determine the numbers of Converted
Shares for which Cash Elections (the “Cash Election Shares™) and Share Elections
(the “Share Election Shares™) have been received.

(i)  Each Share Election Share and No-Election Share shall be converted
in the Merger into the right to receive the Share Consideration.

(iii)  If Cash Election shares constitute more than the Maximum Cash
Election Shares of the Converted Shares, th: Cash Election Shares shall be
converted in the Merger into the right to receive cash and shares of WATER
Common in the following manner: the number of Cash Election Shares covered by
a Cash Election which shall be converted into the right to receive the Cash
Consideration shall equal the amount obtained by multiplying (x) the number of
shares of STEAM Common covered by such Cash Election by (y) a fraction of
which the numerator shall be the Maximum Cash Election Shares and the
denominator shall be the aggregate number of Cash Election Shares. The balance
of such Cash Election Shares shall each be converted into the right to receive the
Share Consideration.
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(iv) If Cash Election Shares constirute the Maximum Cash Election
Shares or less of the Converted Shares, each Cash Election Share shall be
converted in the Merger into the right to receive the Cash Consideration.

Section 2.2 Date, Time and Place of Closing. The Closing of the Merger (the
“Closing ") shall be held on the fifth business day following the satisfaction or waiver of all of the
conditions set forth in Article VII hereof, beginning at a.m. Time in the offices
of or at such other place,
time and date as the parties hereto shall mutually lgru The date of the Closing is referred to
herein as the “Closing Date.”

Section 2.3  Deliveries by STEAM and the Shareholders at Closing. At the Closing,
and thereafter as may be reasonably requested by WATER, STEAM and the Shareholders shall

deliver to WATER the following:

(@)  Certified copies of duly adopted resolutions of the Board of Dirsctors of
STEAM authorizing, approving, and consenting to the execution and delivery of this
Agreement, to the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein, and to
performance of the agreements set forth herein;

(b)  The waiver, release, consent, estoppel certificate or other document of any
person, corporation, association, or cther eniity of any narure whatsoever, in form
reasonably acceptable to WATER, which WATER in its reasonable judgment deems
necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, and to make the warranties
and representations made by STEAM and the Shareholders in this Agreement true;

(c)  Certificates of Good Standing dated within ten (10) days of the Closing Date
from the Secretary of State and the tax commission for the Commonwealth of Virginia as
appropriate, with respect to the payment of sales, employment, franchise and income tax
liabilities of STEAM, in form and content as generally issued by the Commonwealth of
Virginia;

(d) An opinion of STEAM's counsel dated as of the Closing Date in
substantially the form set forth on Exhibit 2.3(d) to this Agreement;

(e) A duly executed Registration Rights Agreement in the form of
Exhibit 2.3(e) hereto;

() A duly executed Escrow Agreement in the form of Exhibit 2.3(f) bhereto;

(g)  Duly executed Employment Agreements in the forms attached as Exhibits
2.3(g) hereto;
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than 45 days after the Closing Date, WATER shall cause WATER's Auditors to deliver
a consolidated balance sheet of STEAM as of the Closing Date (as corrected pursuant to
Section 2.5(c) hereof, the “Closing Balance Sheet™) to each of the parties to this
Agreement and to the Escrow Agent. The Closing Balance Sheet shall be prepared in
accordanc: with generally accepted accounting principles applied consistently with
STEAM's past practice (to the extent that such past practice was in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles), without any adjustments applicable solely as a
result of the Merger, and shall be certified without qualification by WATER's Auditors.
The Closing Balance Sheet shall be accompanied by a statemer: prepared by WATER's
Auditors setting forth the basis for the determination of the items and values reflected on
the Closing Balance Sheet.

(b)  The Shareholders' Representative (as defined below) and one firm of
independent certified accountants acting on behalf of the Shareholders and the
Shareholders’ Representative (the “Shareholders’ Auditors®) shall have the right to review
the work papers of WATER's Auditors utilized in preparing the Closing Balance Sheet,
and shall have full access to the books, records, properties and personnel of STEAM for
purposes of verifying the accuracy and fairness of the presentation of the Closing Balance
Sheet. The Sharcholders shall work in good faith and cooperate with WATER and
WATER's Auditors in the preparation of the Closing Balance Sheet and the resolution of
any dispute in connection therewith pursuant to subparagraph (c) below.

(¢)  The values or amounts for cach item reflected on the Closing Balance Sheet
shall be binding upon the Shareholders and the Shareholders' Representative, unless the
Shareholders’ Representative gives written notice within 30 days after receipt of the
Closing Balance Sheet, of disagreement with any of the values or amounts shown on the
Closing Balance Sheet, specifying as to each such item in reasonable detail, the nature and
extent of such disagreement (the *Dispute Notice™). If WATER and the Shareholders'
Representative are unable to resolve any such disagreement within 30 days after the date
of the Dispute Notice, the disagreement shall be submitted to arbitration in accordance
with the provisions of this Agreement. If as a result of the resolution of any disputes by
agreement pursuant to this Section 2.5 or by arbitration pursuant to this Agreement, any
amount shown in the Closing Balance Sheet is Getermined to be erroneous, such erroneous
amount shall be deleted from the Closing Balance Sheet and the correct amount shall be
inserted in lieu thereof The Closing Balance Sheet, as so corrected, shall constitute the
Closing Balance Sheet for purposes of this Agreement.

(d) WATER shall pay the fees and disbursements of WATER's Auditors. The
fees and disbursemenis of the Shareholders’ Auditors incurred in the review of the Closing
Balance Sheet shall be paid by the Shareholders, in proportion to their ownership of
STEAM Common. WATER shall under no circumstances be liable for any fees or
disbursements of the Shareholders' Auditors.




(¢)  Immediately upon the expiration of the 30-day period for giving the Dispute
Notice, if no Dispute Notice is given, or immediately upon the resolution of disputes, if
any, pursuant to this Section 2.5, the Merger Consideration remaining to be distributed
shall be adjusted by the aggregate of the adjustments set forth below (as so adjusted, the
“Adjusted Merger Consideration™). In the event the Adjusted Merger Consideration
exceeds the Merger Consideration, WATER shall issue additional WATER Common, at
the WATER Average Closing Price, to the Shareholders in preparation to their ownership
of STEAM Common:

(i) If the Long Term Debt of STEAM (as defined below) as reflected
on the Closing Balance Sheet is less than $1,200,000.00, the difference between
such Long Term Debt and $1,200,000.00 shall be added to the Merger
Consideration.

(ii)  If the Long Term Debt of STEAM reflected on the Closing Balance
Sheet is greater than $1,200,000.00, the difference between such Long Term Debt
and $1,200,000.00 shall be subtracted from the Merger Consideration.

(iii)  If the Working Capital of STEAM (as defined below) reflected on

the Closing Balance Sheet is less than § , the difference between such
Working Capital and $ shall be subtracted from the Merger
Consideration.

(iv)  If the Working Capital of STEAM reflected on the Closing Balance
Sheet is greater than § , the difference berween such Working Capital and
S shall be added to the Merger Consideration.

(v)  The term “Long Term Debt” is defined as

(vi)  The term “Working Capital” is defined as , after
provision for payment of fees and expenses of STEAM and the Shareholders
associated with this Agreement and the Merger.

Section 2.6 Payments of Adjusted Merger Consideration. Immediately upon
expiration of the 37-day period for giving the Dispute Notice, or immediately upon final
resolution of any dispute:

(@) In the event the Adjusted Merger Consideration is less than the Merger
Consideration, an amount equal to the difference between such amounts shall be returned
to WATER from the Share Consideration held in escrow pursuant to the Escrow

Agreement.




ARTICLE Il
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF STEAM AND THE SHAREHOLDERS

STEAM and the Shareholders hereby jointly and severally make the representations and
warranties set forth in this Article Il to WATER and Acquisition. STEAM and the Sharcholders
acknowledge that (i) these representations and warranties are made by them as an inducement o
WATER and Acquisition to enter this Agreement and (o consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby; and (i) WATER and Acquisition have entered into this Agreement
specifically in reliance upon each of such representations and warranties.

Section 3.1 QOrganization. STEAM is duly organized, validly existing, and in good
standing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Attached hereto as Exhibit 3.1 is a
complete and correct copy of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws (together with all
amendments thereto) of STEAM. STEAM has all necessary power and authority to own and
operate its properties and assets, to enter into this Agreement, and to carry on its business as now
conducted.

Section 3.2 Subsidiaries. Qualification, Licenses.  STEAM has no subsidiary
corporations or any other interest in any corporation, partnership, association or joint venture,
other than as described on Schedule 3.2.  Neither the nature of STEAM's business nor the
location of its properties require that it be duly certified, licensed or qualified to do business in
any state or jurisdiction other than the States of Virginia, ' ' .

, and (together, the “States™). STEAM is duly qualified, certified or
licensed in each such state and jurisdiction where such qualification, certification or licensing is
necessary or required to conduct its business and offer communications services.

Section 3.3  Capitalization.

(a)  The authorized capital stock of STEAM consists of: (i) 1,000 shares of
common stock, no par value, of which 606 shares are issued and outstanding and
shares are held as treasury stock, and (ii) 100,000 shares of $10 par value

preferred stock, of which 30,785.04 shares are issued and outstanding and
shares are held as treasury stock. There are no other classes of equity, options, warrants,
cl.'lh.ﬁmmmmwmwﬂmycwauhﬁmmmcnlc.
issuance or voting of any shares of STEAM Common, or any securities convertible into
or evidencing the right to purchase any shares of STEAM Common. All such issued and
mtumdin;mmueuﬁdlyimnd.funypﬂdmdmm:bh. All of the outstanding
capinlnuckufSTEAMi:heldufmordbyﬁupcmmoremiﬁu in the amounts set
forth on Schedule 3.3, and there is no outstanding agreement (written or oral), option,
warrant, noe or any other type of security of STEAM which would entitle any person (o
acquire any equity securities of STEAM. There are no restrictions imposed by the
Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of STEAM, and there are no other agreements,
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understandings or commitments, which would in any way affect or impair the transactions
contemplated hereby.

()  Each Shareholder is the lawful record and beneficial owner of the STEAM
Common set forth opposite his name on Schedule 3.3. The STEAM Common are now
and as of the Closing will be free and clear of any claims, pledges, security interests, liens
or encumbrances or other restrictions or limitations of any kind, other than those arising
under this Agreement. None of the Shareholders or STEAM is a party to, or bound by,
any shareholder agreement, voting agreement, voting trust, buy-sell agreement, option
agreement or any similar agreement, understanding or commitment with respect to any of
the STEAM Common.

Section 3.4 Authority. This Agreement and each other agreement required to be
executed and delivered by STEAM or the Sharcholders in connection herewith, when executed
and delivered, will be the legal, valid and binding obligation of STEAM or the Shareholders, as
applicable, enforceable against them in accordance with their terms, except as enforceability may
be limited by (i) applicable bankrupicy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium and similar laws
affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally, and (ii) general equitable principles
(regardless of whether enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).

Section 3.5 Consents and Approvals. The execution, delivery and performance of this
Ammmmwmhmmwuﬂﬂwmmtmnofﬂn
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby will not violate or result in a breach of any term of
STEAM’s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, result in a breach of or constitute a default under
any term in any agreement, tariff or other instrument to which STEAM is a party or by which it
is bound, violate any law or any order, rule or regulation applicable to STEAM of any court or
any regulatory body, administrative agency or other governmental instrumentality having
jurisdiction over STEAM or its properties; and will not result in the creation or imposition of any
lien, charge, or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of its assets, which lien, charge
or encumbrance has not been removed prior to Closing. STEAM has taken all actions required
bthmwmmhdlmumﬁmmayhmwmmunuumﬁonmddelimyof
this Agreement, together with its Schedules and Exhibits, and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement or by #ny of the Exhibits. Except as set forth on
Schedule 3.5 hereto, none of the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement or any of
the other agreements executed in connection herewith, or the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby requires any filing with or the consent or approval of any third
party, including but not limited to any governmental body or entity other than the filing with, and
the acceptance for record by, the Virginia State Corporation Commission of Articles of Merger
in accordance with the VSCA. None of the Shareholders =- STEAM is required to obtain the
consent or approval of any other person or entity with respect to the transactions contemplated
hereunder, except as set forth on Schedule 3.5.




Section 3.6 Financial Statements.

(a) (i) The audited Balance Sheets of STEAM as of April 30, 1995 and 1996
and the unaudited Balance Sheet of STEAM as of December 31, 1996 (the “Balance
Sheets™), and (ii) the related Statements of Income and the Statements of Cash Flows for
the fiscal years and periods then ended of STEAM, together with the notes thereon,
audited by the independent certified public accountants of STEAM, have been delivered
by STEAM to WATER. Such audited financial statements and notes were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP") consistently applied
during the periods involved, are in accordance with the books and records of STEAM,
contain and reflect adequate reserves for (i) all liabilities or obligations of any nature,
whether absolute, contingent or otherwise, in accordance with GAAP and (ii) all
reasonably anticipated losses and costs in excess of expected revenue, and present fairly
the financial position of STEAM, as of such dates and for such periods. All transactions
between STEAM and the Shareholders related to the business or operations of STEAM
have been identified in such audited financial statements.

()  Except as set forth in Schedule 3.6, the unaudited financial statements as
of and for the period ended December 31, 1996 have been similarly prepared, contain and
reflect adequate reserves for (i) all liabilities or obligations of any nature, whether
absolute, contingent or otherwise, in accordance with GAAP and (ii) all reasonably
anticipated losses, and present fairly the financial condition and results of operations of
STEAM as of such date and for such period, except for the lack of explanatory footnote
disclosures required by GAAP. Such footnote disclosures, if included with the financial
statements at and for the eight (8) month period ended December 31, 1996, would be
substantially similar in description and content to the footnote disclosures in the audited
financial statements for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1996. All transactions berween
STEAM and the Sharcholders related to the business or operations of STEAM have been
identified in such unaudited financial statements.

(¢) For purposes of this Agreement, the Balance Sheet of STEAM at
December 31, 1996 is sometimes referred to as the “Balance Sheet™ and the date thereof
is referred to as the “Balance Sheet Date.” STEAM shall deliver to WATER (i) the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of STEAM for the months ended after
December 31, 1996, no later than ___ days after the end of each such month until Closing
shall have occurred; (i) the audited financial statements of STEAM for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 1997, no later than . 1997; and (iii) any subsequent unaudited
compiled financ.al statements of STEAM for each fiscal quarter thereafter no later than
35 days after the end of each such fiscal quarter until the Closing shall have occurred.
Such financial statements will be prepared in accordance with GAAP applied o a
consistent basis during the periods involved, will present fairly the financial condition and
results of operations of STEAM as of such dates and for such periods, and will be in
accordance with the books and records of STEAM.
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Section 3.7 Absence of Certain Changes. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.7, since
the Balance Sheet Date, there has not been:

(a)  Any material adverse change in the financial condition, operations, business
or prospects of STEAM, including, but not limited to, any state or federal regulatory
proceedings which could culminate in an order or other action which could have such an
adverse change, excluding generally known industry trends and competitive conditions

affecting the industry generally;

()  Any material physical damage or destruction, whether or not covered by
insurance, adversely affecting the properties, business, or operations of STEAM;

(¢)  Any labor dispute or threat thereof or any attempt to organize or reorganize
the employees of STEAM for the purpose of collective bargaining;

(d)  Any direct or indirect redemption, purchase or other acquisition by STEAM
of any of the STEAM Stock, or declaration of or payment or distribution of any kind of
cash or other assets to any Shareholder;

(¢)  Any employment, severance, consulting or other compensation contract
entered into by STEAM with any director, officer or employee, or any increase of
compensation payable or to become payable to any of its officers, employees or agents,
except for increases in compensation in the ordinary course of business;

N Any communication, whether oral or written, to STEAM or the
Shareholders from STEAM's customers or suppliers or agencies regulating STEAM; nor
does STEAM or any Sharcholder, after making due inquiry, have any knowledge of any
potential development affecting STEAM which would reasonably lead it or any of them
to expect a material adverse change in STEAM's business;

(g)  Any satisfaction or discharge of any lien by STEAM or payment by
STEAM of any obligation or liability, other than an obligation or liability included in the
Balance Sheet of STEAM, current liabilities incurred since the Balance Sheet Date in the
ordinary course of business, liabilities incurred in carrying out the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and obligations and liabilities under the contracts and
agreements listed in Schedule 3.16 hereof;

(h) Any guaranty, endorsement or indemnification by STEAM of the
obligations of any third person, firm or corporation;

(i) Any sale or transfer of any assets or cancellation by STEAM of debts or
claims having a value, in the aggregate, of more than $10,000, except, in each case, in the
ordinary course of business;
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()  Any knowing waiver by STEAM of any rights having a value in excess of
$10,000;

(k)  Any transactions entered into, other than in the ordinary course of business;

m Any mortgage, pledge or lien or other encumbrance of any of its assets,
tangible or intangible; or

(m)  Any assignment, sale or transfer of any patent, trademark, trade name, trade
secret, copyright or other intangible asset.

Section 3.8 No Undisclosed Liabilities. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.8 attached
hereto and made a part hereof, as of , 1997, STEAM had no material liabilities,
absclute or contingent, which are not shown on the Balance Sheet. All liabilities, absolute or
contingent, of STEAM incurred subsequent to . 1997 will have been incurred only
in the ordinary course of business and STEAM will, prior to the Closing, have obtained the
consent of WATER to incur any single such liability incurred subsequent to the date of this
Agreement in excess of $25,000. The accounts, notes and other receivables, whether current or
non-current, of STEAM shown on the most recent Balance Sheet before the Closing, and all such
receivables of STEAM as at the Closing, were and shall be good and collectible, subject only to
any allowance for doubtful accounts, losses or reserves for returns which may be provided for in
such Balance Sheet or, in the case of receivables subsequently created, on the books of STEAM
as of the Closing. The total amount of debt owed by STEAM to banks or other third-party
lenders does not, and will not as of the Closing, exceed § :

Section 3.9 Evaluation Materials. The written materials, data and documents provided
by STEAM and the Shareholders to WATER related to STEAM's historical revenue generation,
customer retention and acquisition, costs of access and other network costs remain true as of the
date hereof and the results of STEAM's operations as of the date hereof are consistent with such
written materials, data and documents. All written projections of future operations provided by
STEAM and the Sharcholders to WATER are consistent with such written materials, data and
documents and are based upon assumptions of future conditions which STEAM and the
Shareholders believe are reasonable.

Section 3.10 Benefit Plans: ERISA.

(a) Schedule 3.10(a) lists all contracts, agreements, arrangements and
understanding 1, whether written or oral, with respect to the payment or delivery to any
person of compensation, bonuses, perquisites, benefits and other items of value by
STEAM.
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(b)  Schedule 3.10(b) lists each employee of STEAM and identifies the salary,
commissions, bonuses, perquisites and benefits to which each such employee is entitled.
Such Schedule also sets forth the names of all directors and officers of STEAM and a
description of any agreement with respect to the election or tenure of any of them as such.

(c) No employee of STEAM will be entitled to severance pay by virtue of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Schedule 3.10(c) sets forth each employee
of STEAM who has any right to severance pay for any reason, listing the employee name,
severance amount or method of calculation, and the basis for such right.

(d)  Schedule 3.10(d) contains a true and complete list of each pension, profit
sharing, other deferred compensation, bonus, incentive compensation, stock purchase,
stock option, retirement, supplemental retirement, severance or termination pay, medical,
hospitalization, life insurance, dental, disability, salary continuation, vacation,
supplemental unemployment benefits plan, program, arrangement or contract, and cach
other employee benefit plan, program, arrangement or contract, maintained, contributed
to, or required to be contributed to, or promised by STEAM or any Related Party
(hereinafter defined) for the benefit of any current or former employee, director or agent
of STEAM or any Related Party, whether or not any of the foregoing is funded, whether
formal or informal, whether or not subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA") (collectively, the “Benefit Plans™). STEAM and its
Related Parties do not have any express or implied commitment or contract (o create any
additional Benefit Plan or modify any existing Benefit Plan, other than as may be required
to comply with ERISA or the Code. STEAM has delivered to WATER, with respect to
each applicable Benefit Plan (1) true and complete copies of all documents embodying or
relating to each Benefit Plan including, without limitation, the plan and trust or other
funding arrangement relating thereto, summary plan descriptions, employee handbooks or
personnel manuals, and all amendments and supplements thereto; (2) the most recent
annual report (Series 5500 and all schedules thereto), if any, required by ERISA; and
(3) the most recent determination letter received from the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS"), if any. “Related Party"™ means any member of a controlled group of
corporations, a group of trades or businesses under common control or an affiliated service
group, within the meaning of Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code, of STEAM.

(t)  None of the Benefit Plans are intended by STEAM or any Related Party to
meet, or are required to meet, the requirements of Section 401(a) of the Code and no
Benefit Plan is subject to Title IV of ERISA.

()  STEAM and any Related Party have performed the obligations required to
be performed by them under, and are not in default under or in violation of, any and all
of the Benefit Plans, and each Benefit Plan has been operated in all material respects in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations. Neither any
Benefit Plan or fiduciary nor STEAM or any Related Party has taken any action, or failed
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(o take any action, that could subject it or any other person to any maierial liability for any
excise tax under Chapter 43 of the Code or for breach of fiduciary duty with respect to or
in connection with a Benefit Plan.

(8) At no time has STEAM or any Related Party been required to contribute
to any “multiemployer plan” (within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA) and STEAM
and its Related Parties have no liability (contingent or otherwise) relating to the withdrawal
or partial withdrawal from a multiemployer plan. STEAM and its Related Parties do not
participate in any “multiple employer plans,” within the meaning of ERISA.

(h)  No Benefit Plan provides or is required to provide group health, medical,
death or survivor benefits to any former or retired employee of STEAM or beneficiary
thereof, except to the extent (i) requmnd under any state insurance law providing for a
conversion option under a group insurance policy or (ii) under Section 601 of ERISA.

(i) No Benefit Plan or fiduciary has nor does STEAM or any Related Party
have any liability to any participant, beneficiary or other person under any provision of
ERISA or any other applicable law by reason of any payment of, or failure to pay, benefits
or other amounts with respect to or in connection with any Benefit Plan.

()  Each Benefit Plan may be terminated by STEAM or its Related Parties
within a period of thirty (30) days following the Closing Date without acceleration or
additional vesting of any benefits and without payment of any amount as a penalty, bonus,
premium, severance pay or other compensation or amount.

Section 3.11 Litigation. Except as set forth in Schedule 3.11:

(a)  There are no claims, suits, actions, or proceedings of any nature whatsoever
in law or in equity, pending before any court, governmental department, commission,
agency, instrumentality or authority or any arbitrator, or, to the best knowledge of
STEAM and the Shareholders, threatened, nor are there, to the best knowledge of STEAM
and the Shareholders, any investigations, whﬂhumnmwrponndlyonbehﬂfofSTEAM
complaints or reviews by any court, governmental department, commission, agency,
instrumentality or authority or any arbitrator pending or threatened against, relating to or
affecting STEAM.

(b)  STEAM is not operating under or subject (o, nor in default with respect to,
any order, writ, injunction, garnishment, levy or decree of any federal, state, municipal
or other governmental court, department, commission, board, bureau, agency or
instrumentality. The use or ownership of STEAM's assets, the use or occupancy of
STEAM's real property, and any interests related thereto, and the Merger does not
constitute a default thereunder.
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(c)  During the past five (5) years, there has not been nor is there now pending,
any claim(s) against any person in his or her capacity as either a director or officer of
STEAM. The Sharcholders have no actual knowledge or information of any act, error,
or omission which would give rise to such a claim. Neither STEAM nor the Shareholders
have been involved in or have knowledge of any facts or circumstances involving the
following which would give rise to such a claim: (i) antitrust, copyright, trade name,
trademark or patent claims or litigation; (ii) charges in any civil or criminal action or
administrative proceeding involving a violation of any federal or state security law or
regulation; (iii) charges in any civil or criminal action or administrative proceeding
involving a violation of any federal or state antitrust or fair trade law or consumer
protection law or regulation, whether general or specific to the communications services
industry; (iv) actions involving representative actions, class actions or derivative suits.

(d)  Neither STEAM nor Sharcholders are aware of any claim, or the basis of
any claim, against STEAM for injury to person or property of employees or any third
party suffered as a result of the sale of any product or the performance of any service by
STEAM, including claims arising out of any alleged defective nature of its products or
services.

(¢)  There is no claim, legal action, suit, arbitration, governmental investigation
or other legal or other administrative proceeding, including any bankruptcy proceeding,
nor any order, decree or judgment in progress, pending, in effect or, to the knowledge of
STEAM or the Sharcholders threatened, against or relating to STEAM or the
Shareholders, which would negatively affect the transactions commphmd by this

Agreement.

(H There is not pending nor, to the best knowiedge of STEAM and the
Shareholders, threatened, a recall or investigation of any product sold by STEAM.

Section 3.12 Compliance with Laws. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.12, STEAM
has not received writien notice and peither STEAM nor any of the Sharcholders has any
knowledge, having made due inquiry, of any violation by STEAM of its tariffs or of laws,
regulations and orders from any governmental entity having authority to enforce such tariffs, laws,
regulations and orders, including, but not limited to, the Communications Act of 1934 as amended
by (i) the Telecor-munications Act of 1996, and by (ii) the Telephone Consumer Protection Act
of 1991, and the Shareholders do not have any actual knowledge, having made due inquiry, that
any requirements of insurance carriers applicable to its business are not being adhered to. The
present uses by STEAM of its properties do not violate any such laws, regulations, orders ur
requirements. To Shareholders' actual knowledge, having made due inquiry, no consent or
approval by any governmental or quasi-governmental authority, other than the approval of the
Federal Communications Commission, the utility regulatory commissions in those states in which
STEAM offers communications services, and certain regulatory authorities of foreign countries,
if any, in which STEAM offers international communications services, (together, the
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“Commissions”) all of which are set forth in Schedule 3.5, and compliance with applicable federal
and state securities and corporation laws, is required in connection with the execution, delivery
and performance of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 3.13 Tax Returns. Except as set forth in Schedule 3.13, all federal income tax
returns, and other federal tax returns of every nature, and all state, county and local tax returns
and declarations of estimated tax or estimated tax deposit forms required to be filed by STEAM,
have been duly and timely filed, were true, correct and complete in all materials respects and
STEAM has paid all taxes which have become due and owing or pursuant to any assessment
received by it and has paid all instaliments of estimated tax due. Where sucn returns and reports
have not been audited and approved or settled, there has not been any waiver or extension of any
applicable statute of limitations, and STEAM has not received any notice of deficiency or
adjustment. The Balance Sheet contains liabilities which are and will be sufficient for the payment
of all respective federal, state, county and local taxes, whether current or deferred.

All taxes and other assessments and levies which STEAM is required by law to withhold
or 1o collect have been duly withheld and collected, and have been paid over to the proper
governmental authorities or are held by STEAM in scparate bank accounts for such payment. All
statemnents and reports required to be filed under any chapter of the Code by STEAM have been
duly filed.

Except as described on Schedule 3.13, attached hereto and made a part hereof, to the best
of the Shareholders’ knowledge, having made due inquiry, there is not now pending or under
contemplation any audit of any payment, return or report made or filed by STEAM or of any
claimed failure to pay or report any kind of tax which may be assessed by any taxing authority
against STEAM.

Section 3.14 Indehtedness. Schedule 3.14 is a correct and complete list of all
instruments, agreements or arrangements pursuant to which STEAM has borrowed any money,
guaranteed or incurred any indebtedness or established any line of credit which represents any
liability, contingent or otherwise, of STEAM on the date hereof. True and complete copies of
all such written instruments, agreements or arrangements have been delivered 1o WATER prior
to the date of this Agreement.

Section 3.15 Banks. Schedule 3.15 is a correct and complete list setting forth the name
of each bank in which STEAM has an account or sate deposit box, the names of all persons
authorized to draw thereon or to have access thereto, and the name of each person holding a
power of attorney “rom STEAM.

Section 3.16 Contracts. Schedule 3.16 lists and describes all of the written contracts,
plans, agreements, arrangements and leases, true and complete copies of which have been
furnished 10 WATER as of the date hereof, and describes each oral contract, plan, agreement,
arrangement and lease to which STEAM is a party, including but not limited 1o0: (i) each contract
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for the future purchase of materials, services, supplies or equipment which (a) has a term in
excess of one year or (b) obligates STEAM to pay, in one installment or in the aggregale over its
term or one year, whichever is shorter, an amount in excess of § . (ii) each contract and
letter of authorization with a customer made in the ordinary course of business which (a) has a
term in excess of one year or (b) generates revenues for STEAM over its term or in any one 12
month period, whichever is shorter, in excess of § ; (ili) each contract not made in the
ordinary and usual course of business; (iv) each employment, severance and consulting contract;
(v) each coniract with any labor union or other labor organization; (vi) each guarantee and
accommodation; (vii) each license and franchise relating to the business of STEAM; (viii) each
lease of real and personal property which (a) has a term in excess of one year or (b) obligates
STEAM 1o pay, in one installment or in the aggregate over its term or one year, whichever is
shorter, an amount in excess of § which leases shall be set forth separately in Schedule
3.16; and (ix) each contract and agreement with affiliates of STEAM, including the Shareholders.
STEAM holds a current, valid letter of authorization from each of its business and residential
customers. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.16 hereto, STEAM has performed all obligations
required to be performed by it to date and has not breached and is not in default under any
agrecment listed in Schedule 3.16 or to which it is a party or by which it is bound, and all of the
same are enforceable in accordance with their terms.

Section 3.17 Titles, Real Property Matters. Schedule 3.17 contains descriptions by
categories of STEAM's real property (including all plants and structures located thereon) as of
the date of this Agreement. Except as set forth in Schedule 3.17, STEAM has good and
marketable title in fee simple to such properties, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances and
use restrictions. STEAM will obtain title insurance policies on all real estate listed as owned in
fee simple on Schedule 3.17 hereto, prior to the Closing. STEAM owns or leases all the
furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements located in the structures referred to in
Schedule 3.17. All other assets and property used in the business of STEAM, and all assets and
property reflected in the Balance Sheets, the Balance Sheet, or acquired after the Balance Sheet
Date (other than assets or property sold or otherwise disposed of in the ordinary course of its
business subsequent to such date) are in each case free and clear of all security interests,
mortgages, pledges, liens, conditional sales, agreements, leases, encumbrances or charges of any
nature whatsoever except as expressly stated in Schedule 3.17. All real estate owned or leased
by STEAM, their uses, appurtenances and improvements substantially comply with all applicable
ordinances and regulations, building, and zoning laws. The buildings, machinery and equipment
of STEAM are in good and serviceable condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted.

Section 3.18 Environmental Matters.

(a) Hazardous Materials (as defined below) have never been generated, stored,
discharged, disposed of, spilled, dumped, poured, emptied, or released and are not
currently present at, on, in, beside, above or under the Real Property and no contingent
liability exists in connection with any release of any Hazardous Material. Underground
storage tanks are not and have never been located on the Real Property.
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(b)  Operations conducted at the Real Property at all times complied in all
respects with Environmental Laws (as defined below). STEAM has obtained all
governmental authorizations and permits under Environmental Laws necessary for its
operations. STEAM is in compliance with each term and condition of such authorizations

and permits.

(¢)  The Real Property and STEAM's operations thereon are not subject to (i)
any federal, state, or local investigation, (ii) any judicial or administrative proceeding
alleging the violation of or liability under any Environmental Law, or (iii) any outstanding
written order or agreement with any governmental authority or private party relating to
any Environmental Law.

(d)  For the purpose of this Agreement, the term “hazardous materials™ shall
include, but not be limited to:

any substance defined as “hazardous substances,” “hazardous air
pollutant,” “pollutants,” “contaminarts,” “hazardous materials,”
“hazardous wastes,” “toxic chemicals,” “petroleum or petroleum
products,” “toxics,” “hazardous chemicals,” “extremely hazardous
substances,” “pesticides”™ or related materials, including but not limited to
radon and asbestos, as now, in the past, or hereafter defined in any
applicable federal, state or local law, regulation, ordinance, policy or
directive, including, but not limited to, the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the
Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986,; the Emergency
Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act; the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act,; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act of 1974;
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act; the Clean Air Act; the Federal
Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act; the Safe Drinking Water Act;
the Toxic Substances Control Act; the Oil Pollution Act of 1990; any laws
regulating the use of biological agents or substances including medical or
infectious wastes, each as nmended or suoplemented, and any analogous
future or present local, state and federal statutes, regulations and ordinances
promulgated pursuant thereto which may be applicable, as any such acts
may bv amended (*Environmental Laws®).

(e) STEAM agrees and consents to the performance of environmental testing
on the Real Property as WATER may reasonably request; provided, however, that the
performance of such tests will not negate or affect STEAM's or the Sharcholders’
representations or warranties or agreement to indemnify contained herein.
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Section 3.19 Broker's Fees. Except for The Toronto Dominion Bank, no person or
entity has been authorized to act as a broker, finder, financial advisor or in any other similar
capacity as 1o give rise to any claim for brokerage or finder's fees or commissions with respect
to the transactions contemplated hereby by anyone claiming to have acted on behalf of the
Shareholders or STEAM.

Section 3.20 Labor Matters. No group of employees of STEAM is presently crganized
into a collective bargaining unit. No labor union has recently attempied, or is presently
attempting, to organize any of STEAM's employees into a collective bargaining unit. No
employees of STEAM are on strike or threatening to strike.

Section 3.21 Conflicts of Interest. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.21, neither the
Shareholders nor any director, officer, or employee of STEAM or any relative of any of them,
has (i) loaned to or guaranteed the loan of a third party to STEAM or borrowed any money from
STEAM or (ii) any interest in any property, real or personal whether owned or leased, tangible
or intangible, including but not limited to, software, inventions, patents, trade names or
trademarks used in connection with or pertaining to the business of STEAM or any lender,
supplier, customer, sales representatives or distributor of STEAM; provided, however, that the
Shareholder or such director, officer, or employee or relative thereof shall not be deemed to have
such interest solely by virtue of the ownership of less than five percent (5%) of any stock or
indebtedness of any publicly-held company, the stock or indebtedness of which is traded on a

recognized stock exchange.

Section 3.22 . Schedule
3.22 sets forth a correct and complete list of all copyrights, patents, trademarks, trade names,
processes, inventions and formula applied for, issued to or owned by STEAM or under which
STEAM is licensed or franchised, all of which are valid, in good standing and uncontested.
Except as set forth on Schedule 3.22, STEAM possesses adequate rights, licenses or other
authority to use all copyrights, patents, inventions, formula, processes (secret or otherwise),
trademarks and trade names necessary to conduct its businesses as presently conducted or
presently proposed to be conducted. STEAM has not received any notice or other information
with respect to any alleged infringement or unlawful use of any software license, copyright,
patent, trademark, trade name, process, invention or formula or other intangible property right
owned by it or by others. No director or officer of STEAM has any interest in any such
copyright, patent, trademark, trade name, process, invention or formula. STEAM has not granted
any ouuundin;liomuoroﬁerﬁ;humﬂh;moblipﬁmwmliummuﬂmﬁghu
with respect to any copyright, patent, invention, formula, process, trademark or trade name listed
in Schedule 3.22, ex.2pt as specifically stated in Schedule 3.22.

Section 3.23 Insurance Coverage. Schedule 3.23 is a correct and complete list of all
mummmwmmummmuqm.morm.mnme.m.
expiration date and premium. STEAM has its buildings, plants and properties, including, but not
limited to telecommunications equipment and inventories, insured for its actual cash value, but

OMAHA-28409.3 21




not exceeding the amount it would cost to repair or replace such properties, against loss or
damage by fire and all other hazards and risks of the character usually insured against by persons
operating similar properties in the localities where such properties are located under valid and
enforceable policies issued by insurers of recognized responsibility. Such insurance coverage will
be continued in full force and effect through the Closing. STEAM has not been refused any
insurance by an insurance carrier to which it has applied for insurance during the past three years.

Section 3,24 Full Disclosure. No representation or warranty by STEAM or the
Shareholders in this Agreement, nor any statement or certificate furnished, or o be furnished, by
or on behalf of STEAM or the Sharcholders, nor any document or certificate delivered 1o WATER
pursuant to this Agreement, or in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, contains
any untrue statement of material fact, or omits to state any material fact necessary to make any
statement contained therein not misleading. STEAM and the Shareholders have performed or
complied, or will perform or comply in all material respects with all covenants, agreements and
conditions contained in this Agreement on their part required to be performed or complied with
at or prior to the Closing Date.

Section 3.25 Correct Records. The financial records, ledgers, account books, minute
books, stock certificate books, stock registers, and other corpurate records of STEAM are current,
correct and complete in all material respects and all signatures therein are the true signatures of
the persons who are purported to have signed.

Section 3.26 Investment Representations.

(a) Each Shareholder is acquiting the WATER Stock for his own account for
investment, not as a nominee or agent, and not with a view to the resale or distribution of
the WATER Stock or any part thereof, and no Sharcholder has a plan or intention of
selling, granting any participation in, or otherwise distributing the same. By executing
this Agreement, each Shareholder further represents that there is no contract, undertaking,
agreement or arrangement with any person for resale in connection with a distribution to
any person with respect to any of the WATER Stock. Each Sharcholder acknowledges
that the offering of the WATER Stock, other than the Registered Shares (as defined in
Section 6.5 below), pursuant to this Agreement wil! not be registered under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act™) or any state securities or blue sky law, on
the grounds that the offering and sale of the WATER Stock contemplated by this
Agreement are exempt frora registration pursuant to exemptions available under such laws,
and that WATER's reliance upon such exemptions is predicated upon cach Shareholder’s
representations set forth in this Agreement. Each Shareholder acknowledges and
understands that the WATER Stock, other than the Registered Shares, must be hek! for
an indefinite period of time unless the WATER Stock is subsequently registered under the
Securities Act and/or applicable state securities or blue sky laws or an exemption from
such registration is available.




()  Each Shareholder has such knowledge and experience in financial and
business matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in
the WATER Shares and is able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the WATER
Shares, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the risk of losing part
or all of his investment in the WATER Shates and the possible inability to sell or transfer
the WATER Shares for an indefinite amount of time.

(¢)  The transfer of any or all of the WATER Shares may be refused by
WATER's transfer agent unless the WATER Shares for which transfer is sought are
registered under the Securities Act and all other applicable federal securities or blue sky
laws or unless the Sharcholder seeking uch transfer provides such information as is
deemed necessary by WATER to show that such registration is not required, including an
opinion of legal counsel acceptable to WATER,

(d)  Each Shareholder's principal residence is located within the state designated
under his name on Schedule 3.3.

(¢)  The Shareholders acknowledge and agree that the certificates representing
the WATER Shares shall bear the following legend:

The Shares represented by this certificate have not been registered
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or under any applicable state
securities laws, and may not be sold or otherwise transferred in the absence
of such registration or an ex=mption therefrom under such Act.

Section 3.27 Expenses. The legal expenses allocated to STEAM in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be reasonable and shall not exceed in the
aggregate of § , unless STEAM shall have received written approval to exceed such fee
amount from WATER, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. All other expenses
allocated to STEAM or incurred by it in connection with this Agreement shall not exceed
$ . As soon as practicable after the Closing, STEAM shall submit to WATER a list of such

expenses incurred up to the Closing.
ARTICLE IV
COVENANTS OF STEAM AND THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Shareholders and STEAM jointly and severally covenant and agree that from the date
hereof to and including the Closing:

Section 4.1 Maintenance of Business. STEAM shall continue 1o carry on its business,
maintain its plants and equipment and keep its books of account, records and files in substantially
the same manner as heretofore, except that STEAM shall secek WATER's consent prior to
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incurring any expense other than in the ordinary course of business or capital expenditure which
individually or in the aggregate would exceed § ., STEAM will maintain in full force and
effect insurance policies now in effect. STEAM may, however, continue to carry on such
activities, plans, capital and operating programs which were approved by it prior to the date
hereof, provided that such activities, plans and programs shall not involve expenditures exceeding
b3 for each such activity, plan or program. If any such activities, plans or programs exceed

e ———

s they shall, prior to the execution of this Agreement, have been submitied to WATER in

detail and in writing, and shall have been approved by WATER.

Section 4.2 Negative Covenants. Except for the permitied actions of STEAM set forth
on Schedule 4.2, without the prior written consent of WATER, STEAM shall not, and the

Shareholders shall do all things and take all reasonable and proper action to provide that STEAM
shall not:

(a) Issue, sell, purchase or redeem, or grant options (o purchase or otherwise
agree to sell, purchase or redeem any shares of its capital stock or any other securities of
STEAM, provided, however, that STEAM and the Shareholders shall take all steps
necessary to redeem, and shall redeem, all issued and outstanding shares of STEAM
preferred stock no fewer than five days prior to the Closing Date;

(b) Amend its Articles of Incorporation or amend its Bylaws;

()  Incur or prepay any liability for borrowed money, short term debt or long
term debt (as those terms are defined in GAAP), other than in the ordinary course of
business and consistent with past practices;

(d) Pay or guarantee any obligation or liability other than obligations or
liabilities reflected in the Balance Sheets, or the Balance Sheet, when due, liabilities
incurred since the Balance Sheet Date in the ordinary course of business and obligations
under contracts and agreements referred to in Schedules annexed hereto or entered into in
the ordinary course of business;

(e)  Adopt or modify any severance, consulting, bonus, pension, profit sharing,
benefit or other compensation plan or arrangement or increase its overall work force, other
than in the normal course of business, or enter into any contract of employment;

(N Enter into or modify any contract or commitment, incur any liability,
absolute or contingent, waive or fail to enforce any right or enter into any other
transactions, other than in the ordinary course of business;




(g)  Take any action that would or might reasonably be expected to result in any
representation or warranty set forth in this Agreement being or becoming untrue in any
respect or in any of the conditions to the consummation of the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement set forth in Article VII hereof not being satisfied;

(h)  Have made or become obligated to make any dividend payment or other
distribution to the Shareholders; or

(i) Enter into or modify any contracts for the purchase of communications
services un'ess such contracts are first approved by WATER.

Section 4.3 QOrganization, Goodwill. STEAM shall preserve its business organization
intact, retain the services of its present officers and use its best efforts 10 substantially retain its
present employees, and preserve the good will of its suppliers, customers and others having
business relations with it.

Section 4.4  Access to Facilities, Files and Records. STEAM and the Sharcholders
acknowledge that as of the date this Agreement is executed WATER has not completed Due
Diligence (defined as those actions and investigations described in subsections (i) through (iv)
below). Therefore, at the reasonable request of WATER, STEAM shall, from time to time, give
or cause to be given to WATER, its officers, employees, accountants, counsel and authorized
representatives full access to (i) all of the property, accounts, books and other financial records,
minate books, deeds, title papers, insurance policies, certificates, licenses, agrecments, contracts,
tariffs, commitments, tax returns, records and files of every character, employees, equipment,
machinery, fixtures, furniture, vehicles, notes and accounts payable and receivable and inventories
of STEAM,; (ii) all such other information concerning the affairs of STEAM as WATER may
reasonably request; (iii) consult with the independent auditors of and counsel to STEAM with
respect to all matters, including, but not limited to, the financial condition of STEAM and the
audit of STEAM’s financial statements and any legal and regulatory matters affecting STEAM;
(iv) at WATER's own cost and expense, the facilities, properties and operations of STEAM in
order to perform a Phase | environmental audit (the “Environmental Audit™). The Environmental
Audit, if conducted, shall be instituted within 30 days after this Agreement is fully executed by
both parties. A copy of the report of the Environmental Audit will be delivered promptly to the
Shareholders and the Shareholders shall, at their expense, be afforded an opportunity to undertake
a Phase II audit, if necessary, to prove to WATER's satisfaction that no hazards exist. The
Shareholders, at their expense, shall be afforded a 30 day period after discovery to cure any
environmental hazards which the Environmental Audit discloses exist and WATER shall keep
confidential all information regarding any such hazard; unless legally required to disclose it.

Section 4.5 Third Party Consents. STEAM or the Shareholders will obtain or cause
to be obtained the consent ¢f any third party whose consent is required in order that the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement may be consummated without violation of any
representation, warranty or covenant made by any of them in this Agreement; provided, however,
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that STEAM shall not spend any money or otherwise incur any obligation in order to obtain any
such consent without the prior writien approval of WATER.

Section 4.6 Securities Laws. STEAM and the Sharcholders will take all action
necessary to permit the transactions contemplated herein to be consummated in compliance with
all applicable federal and state securities laws and regulations.

Section 4.7 Communications Laws. STEAM and the Shareholders will take all action
necessary to permit the transactions contemplated herein to be consummated in compliance with
all applicable federal, state and local telecommunications laws governing or applicable to STEAM

Section 4.8  Notice of Proceedings. STEAM will, upon becoming aware of any order
or decree or any complaint praying for an order or decree restraining or enjoining the
consummation of the Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereunder, or upon receiving
any notice from any governmental department, court, agency or commission of its intention to
institute an investigation into, or institute a suit or proceeding to restrain or enjoin the
consuramation of this Agreement or such transactions, or to nullify or render ineffective this
Agreement or such transactions if consummated, promptly notify WATER in writing of such
order, decree, complaint or notice.

Section 4.9 Delivery of STEAM's Shareholder Lists. The list of shareholders in
Schedule 3.3 bereof is a true and complete list setting forth the identity of all of the common

sharcholders of STEAM, their holdings of all of the stock of STEAM, the certificate number of
each share certificate issued to each of them and the date of such issuance. Prior 1o the Closing,
STEAM will deliver an updated list of its ccmmon shareholders and their holdings and WATER
may rely completely on such updated list of shareholders.

Section 4.10 Confidentiality. STEAM and each Shareholder, shall maintain all
information gained from WATER in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and the terms of this Agreement (the “WATER Confidential Information™) in strict
confidence, and shall take all precautions necessary to prevent disclosure, access to, or
transmission of the WATER Confidential Information, or any part thereof, to any third party,
except as required by law or order of any count having competent jurisdiction. The WATER
Confidential Information shall be used only for the purposes of evaluating the transactions
contemplated hei 2by and in the event the Closing does not occur for any reason, each Shareholder
and STEAM shall, immediatzly upon WATER's request, return all copies and recordings of the
WATER Confidential Information in their possession or under their control and delete all records
thereof in any data storage system maintained by or for such Shareholder or STEAM.

Section 4.11 No Solicitation. STEAM agrees that, prior to the Effective Time, it shall
not, nor shall any of its directors, officers, employees, agents or representatives to, directly or
indirectly, solicit, initiate or encourage (including by way of furnishing or disclosing information)
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inquiries or proposals concerning any merger, consolidation or acquisition or purchase of all or
any substantial portion of the assets or capital stock of STEAM (an *Acquisition Transaction™)
or negotiate or enter into any discussions or other communications with any prospective purchaser
(other than WATER or its affiliates) with respect to any Acquisition Transaction. STEAM shall
immediately advise WATER of any inquiries or proposals relating to any Acquisition Transaction.

Section 4.12 Recommendation and Approval of Merger. The Board of Directors of
STEAM has approved and recommended the Merger to the Sharcholders. Each of the
Shareholders agrees to vote their STEAM Common in favor of the Merger and to take such
actions as may be necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 4.13 Audited Financial Statements. STEAM shall promptly take any action
necessary in order that, no later than July 15, 1997, STEAM can obtain and deliver to WATER
an audited balance sheet of STEAM for each of the two immediately preceding fiscal years, and
an audited income statement, statement of cash flows and statement of retained earnings for each
of the three preceding years (the “Audited Financial Statements”™) with an unqualified opinion
thereon from a certified public accountant reasonably acceptable 10 WATER, together with the
consent of the applicable auditor, in form and content reasonably acceptable to WATER, to the
effect that such financial statements may be included in future public filings of WATER with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"™). Such financial statemnents shall be prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the reporting requirements of the
SEC, including the rules applicable under Regulation S-X. Such statements of income do not
contain any items of special or non-recurring income or any other income not eammed in the
ordinary course of business except as expressly specified therein, and the Audited Financial
Statements include all adjustments, which consist of normal recurring accruals and all elements
of allocable overhead, necessary for such fair presentation.

Section 4.14 Public Announcements. STEAM and each of the Sharcholders
acknowledges that WATER is a publicly-held company and dissemination of information
concerning this transaction or trading in WATER s stock by any party to this transaction or any
party receiving information from any party to this transaction prior to public release could result
in violation of SEC insider trading regulations. Therefore, STEAM and each of the Shareholders
agrees not to disseminate any information or make any public statement concerning the
transactions other than what is in press releases of WATER.

Section 4.15 Adverse Events. Promptly after the occurrence, or failure to occur, of any
event, the occurrence or failure of which would (i) materially adversely affect, or could
reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect, the assets, propertics, operations, business,
prospects, or condition (financial or otherwise) of STEAM or the ability of any Sharcholder or
STEAM to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement, or (ii) which, if known as of the
date of this Agreement, would have been required to be disclosed 1o WATER or (iii) causes any
representation or warranty contained in this Agreement or any Schedule or Exhibit hereto to be
untrue or inaccurate at any time from the date of this Agreement to and including the Closing,
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STEAM and/or such Shareholder shall provide 1o WATER all relevant information related
thereto.

Section 4.16 Employees. On or before the Closing Date, STEAM shall deliver to
WATER a list of STEAM's employees as of the end of the calendar month immediately preceding
the Closing, indicating the following information for each employee:

(@) his or her compensation and any applicable severance arrangement;
(b)  whether remunerated on an hourly, weekly, or monthly basis;
(c)  date of most recent commencement of service with STEAM: and

(d)  accrued holiday, vacation, sick leave, long service catitlement (if any) and
permitted time-off due as compensation for additional time worked.

Section 4.17 Expenses. Sharcholders shall indemnify and hold harmless WATER and
STEAM in respect of any expenses or claims for fees in excess of the amounts set forth in Section
3.27 hereof with respect to the transactions contemplated herein by anyone claiming to have acted
for the benefit of, or on behalf of, STEAM or the Shareholders.

Section 4.18 Retention of Staff. Shareholders John D. Crawford and Thomas G. Keefe
agree, upon election as Chairman of the Board of WATER and Chief Financial Officer of
WATER, respectively, as set forth in Section 6.4 bhereof, to use their best efforts, consistent with
their managerial responsibilities to WATER, to retain the current financial reporting staff and
independent auditors of WATER.

Section 4.19 Shareholders’ Approral. STEAM and the Shareholders have taken, or will
take no later than April __, 1997, all action necessary in accordance with applicable law, and the
STEAM Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, to consider and vote upon the approval of this
Agreement and the Merger. All of the Shareholders have voted or will vote their STEAM Shares
in favor of the Merger. The Sharcholders hereby waive any rights to request appraisal of their
STEAM shares under the provisions of Article 15 of the VSCA.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF WATER AND ACQUISITION

As an inducement to the Shareholders 1o enter into this Agreement and to consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby, WATER and Acquisition represent and warrant to the
Shareholders as follows:




Section 5.1 Corporate Existence. Each of WATER and Acquisition is a corporation
duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of their respective
jurisdictions of incorporation and is qualified as a foreign corporation in each other jurisdiction
in which it is lawfully required to qualify to conduct business.

Section 5.2 Corporate Power and Authority. Each of WATER and Acquisition has
all requisite corporate power and authority to own its properties and assets, and to carry on the
business in which it is now engaged. Each of WATER and Acquisition has the corporate power
and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and the other agreements contemplated
hereby, and to perform the covenants of WATER and Acquisition set forth in this Agreement.

Section 5.3 Capitalization. The authorized capital stock of WATER consists of: (i)
100,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $.0001 per share, of which shares are
issued and outstanding and shares are held as treasury stock and (ii) 25,000,000 shares
of $.01 par value preferred stock, of which shares are issued and outstanding and

shares are held as treasury stock. There are no other classes of equity, options,
warcants, calls, rights or commitments or any other agreements of any character relating to the
sale, issuance or voting of any shares of WATER stock, or any securities convertible into or
evidencing the right to purchase any shares of WATER stock. All such issued and outstanding
shares are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. There are no restrictions imposed by the
Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of WATER, and there are no other agreements,
understandings or commitments, which would in any way affect or impair the transactions
contemplated hereby.

Section 5.4 Execution and Delivery Permitted. The execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement will not violate or result in a breach of any term of WATER's

Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws or result in a breach of constitute a default under any term
in any agreement or other instrument to which WATER or Acquisition is a party, such default
having not been previously waived by the other party to such agreements, or violate any law or
any order, rule or regulation applicable to them, of any court or any regulatory body,
administrative agency or other governmental instrumentality having jurisdiction over them or their
properties. Each of WATER's and Acquisition's Board of Directors has taken all action required
by law, and by their respective Articles of Lncorporation and their respective Bylaws, and
otherwise, to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including the issuance of the
WATER Shares. Neither the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement or any of the
other agreements executed in connection herewith, or the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby requires any filing with or the consent or approval of any third
party, including but not limited to any governmental body or entity, other than (i) compliance with
the Securities Act and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (ii) applications to
certain state utility regulatory commissions in states in which WATER offers services, and (iii)
the filing with, and the acceptance for record by, the Virginia State Corporation Commission of
Articles of Merger in accordance with the VSCA.
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Section 5.5 Binding Effect. This Agreement, and each other agreement required (o be
delivered by WATER or Acquisition in connection herewith, when executed and delivered will
be the legal, valid and binding obligation of WATER or Acquisition, as applicable, enforceable
against them in accordance with their terms, except as enforceability may be limited by (i)
applicable bankrupicy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium and similar laws affecting the
enforcement of creditors' rights generally and (ii) general equitable principles (regardless of
whether enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).

Section 5.6 Reports and Financial Statements. Since ________, 1997, to the
extent WATER has been required to make filings under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or

applicable state laws and regulations, WATER has filed with the SEC or the applicable state
regulatory authority, as the case may be, all forms, statements, reports and documents (including
all exhibits, amendments and supplements thereto) required to be filed by it under each of the
Securities Act, the Exchange Act and applicable state laws and regulations, and the respective
rules and regulations thereunder, all of which complied in all material respects with all applicable
requirements of the appropriate act and the rules and regulations thereunder. WATER has
previously delivered to the Shareholders true and complete copies of its (i) Annual Reports on
Form 10-K for the fiscal years ended March 31, 1996, as filed with the SEC, (ii) proxy
and information statements relating to all meetings of its shareholders (whether annual or special),
and actions by written consent in lieu of a shareholders’ meeting, from ________, 199__ until
the date hereof, (iii) all other reports or registration statements filed by WATER with the SEC
since , 199___ (collectively, the “WATER SEC Reports”) and (d) the audited
consolidated financial statements of WATER for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1996 (the
“WATER Financial Statements™). As of their respective dates, the WATER SEC Reports did not
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statemeats therein, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading. The audited consolidated financial statements and unaudited
interim financial statements of WATER included in the WATER SEC Reports and the WATER
Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles applied on a consistent basis (except as may be indicated therein or in the notes thereto)
and fairly present in all material respects the financial position of WATER and its subsidiaries as
of the dates thereof and the results of their operations and changes in financial position for the
periods then ended, subject, in the case of the unaudited interim financial statements, to normal
year-end and audit adjustments.

Section 5.7 Absence of Certain Changes. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.7,
attached hereto and made a part hereof, since the date of the most recent balance sheet included

in the WATER Financial Statements, there has not been:

(a)  Any material adverse change in the financial condition, operations, business
or prospects of WATER, including, but not limited to, any state or federal regulatory
proceedings which could culminate in an order or other action which could have such an
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adverse change, excluding generally known industry trends and competitive conditions
affecting the industry generally;

(b)  Any material physical damage or destruction, whether or not covered by
insurance, adversely affecting the properties, business, or operations of WATER;

(¢)  Any labor dispute or threat thereof or any attempt to organize or reorganize
the employees of WATER for the purpose of collective bargaining;

(d)  Any direct or indirect redemption, purchase or other acquisition by
WATER of any shares of WATER Common, or declaration of or payment or distribution
of any kind of cash or other assets to any sharcholder of WATER;

(¢)  Any employment, severance, consulting or other compensation contract
entered into by WATER with any director, officer or employee, or any increase of
compensation payable or to become payable to any of its officers, employees or agents,
except for increases in compensation in the ordinary course of business;

()  Any communication, whether oral or written, to WATER from WATER's
customers or suppliers or agencies regulating WATER, nor does WATER have any
knowledge of any potential development affecting WATER, which would reasonably lead
it to expect a material adverse change in WATER's business;

(g) Any guaranty, endorsement or indemnification by WATER of the
obligations of any third person, firm or corporation;

(h)  Any sale or transfer of any assets or cancellation by WATER of debts or
claims having a value, in the aggregate, of more than $100,000, except, in each case, in
the ordinary course of business; or

(i) Any knowing waiver by WATER of any rights having a value in excess of
$100,000.

Section 5.8 Litigation. Except as set forth i Schedule 5.8:

(a)  There are no claims, suits, actions, or proceedings of anv nature whatsoever
in law or in equity, pending before any court, governmental departument, commission,
agency, instrumentality or authority or any arbitrator, or, to the best knowledge of
WATER, threatened, nor are there, to the best knowledge of WATER, any investigations,
whether or not purportedly on behalf of WATER, complaints or reviews by any court,
governmental department, commission, agency, instrumentality or authority or any
arbitrator pending or threatened against, relating to or affecting WATER.
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(b) WATER is not operating under or subject to, nor in default with respect to,
any order, writ, injunction, garishment, levy or decree of any federal, state, municipal
or other governmental court, department, commission, buard, bureau, agency or
instrumentality. The use or ownership of WATER's assets, the use or occupancy of
WATER's reai property, and any interests related thereto, and the issuance of shares of
WATER Commeon in the Merger will not constitute a default thereunder.

(¢)  During the past five (5) years, there has not been nor is there now pending,
any claim(s) against any person in his or her capacity as either a director or officer of
WATER.

(d)  There is no claim, legal action, suit, arbitration, governmental investigation
or other legal or other administrative proceeding, including any bankrupicy proceeding,
nor any order, decree or judgement in progress, pending, in effect, or, 1o the knowledge
of WATER threatened, against or relating to WATER or Acquisition, which would
negatively affect WATER's ability to consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement,

Section 5.9 Compliance with Laws. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.9, WATER has
not received written notice and WATER has no knowledge of any violation by WATER of its
tariffs or of laws, regulations and orders from any governmental entity having authority to enforce
such tariffs, laws, regulations and orders, including, but not limited to, the Communications Act
of 1934 as amended by (i) the Telecommunications Act of 1996, and by (ii) the Telephone
Consumer Protection Act of 1951, and WATER does not have any actual knowledge, having made
due inquiry, that any requirements of insurance carriers applicable to its business are not being
adhered to. The present uses by WATER of its properties do not violate any such laws,
regulations, orders or requirements. To the actual knowledge of WATER, no consent or approval
by any governmental or quasi-governmental authority, other than the approval of ihe Federa!
Communications Commission, the utility regulatory commissions in those states in which STEAM
offers communications services, and certain regulatory authorities of foreign countries, if any, in
which STEAM offers international communications services, and compliance with applicable
federal and state securities and corporation laws, is required in connection with the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement or the consammation of the transactions contemplated
hereby.

Section 5.10 Issuanc: of Shares. Upon issuance of shares of the WATER Common in
the Merger as Merger Consideration or Adjusted Merger Consideration, the WATER Shares will
be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of any lien,
security interest or other encumbrance of any kind and free of any claim, except for the rights of
WATER pursuant to this Agreement or the Escrow Agreement.
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ARTICLE VI
COVENANTS OF WATER

WATER covenants and agrees that:

Section 6.1 Corporate Action. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, WATER
shall take, and shall cause Acquisition to take, all necessary corporate and other action required
of it to carry out the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; provided, however, that
nothing in this Article VI or anywhere else in this Agreement shall require WATER to carry out
such transactions if a Final Order of a Commission (as those terms are defined in Section 7.3 of
this Agreement) contains a term, condition or provision which, in WATER's sole determination,
is unduly burdensome.

Section 6.2 Confidentiality. WATER shall maintain all information gained from
STEAM in connection with its evaluation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the
“STEAM Confidential Information”) in strict confidence, and shall take all precautions necessary
to prevent disclosure, access 10, or transmission of the STEAM Confidential Information, or any
part thereof, to any third party, except (i) for the exclusive purpose of evaluating the Merger, (ii)
as required by law or an order of any court having competent jurisdiction, and (iii) as is necessary
or required for WATER 1o satisfy its disclosure obligations under the federal and state securities
laws. In the event the Closing does not occur for any reason, WATER shall, immediately upon
STEAM's request, return all copies and recordings of the STEAM Confidential Information in
its possession or under its control and delete all records thereof in any data storage system
maintained by or for WATER.

Section 6.3 Natice of Proceedings. WATER will, upon becoming aware of any order
or decree or any complaint praying for aa order or decree restraining or enjoining the
consummation of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereunder, or upon receiving
any notice from any governmental department, court, agency or commission of its intention to
institute an investigation into, or institute a suit or proceeding o restrain or enjoin the
consummation of this Agreement or such transactions if consummated, promptly notify STEAM
in writing of such order, decree, complaint or notice.

Section 6.4 Director Representation.

(a) At the Effective Time, the WATER Board of Directors shall use its best
efforts to support and recommend all necessary action to (i) increase by one (1) the number
of seats on the WATER Board of Directors, (ii) elect John D. Crawford to fill the newly-

* created vacancy, and (iii) elect John D. Crawford as Chairman of the WATER Board of
Directors.




(b)  After the Effective Date of the Merger, and for a period of two (2) years
thereafier, WATER shall use its best efforts to allow STEAM or Sharcholders to designate
for nomination such number of directors, rounded to the next whole number, as will give
the Shareholders representation on WATER's Board of Directors equal to the product of
(x) the number of directors on WATER's Board of Directors (giving effect to any increase
in the number of directors pursuant to this Section 6.4) multiplied by (y) the percentage
that the WATER Shares held by the Sharcholders bears (o the total aggregate number of
WATER Shares outstanding (such number being, the “Board Percentage”), and the
WATER Board of Directors shall, upon request by the Shareholders, use best efforts to
satisfy the Board Percentage by considering the nomination of persons recommended by
the Shareholders to fill one upcoming vacancy on the WATER Board of Directors. The
provisions of this Section 6.4 are in addition to and shall not limit any rights which
STEAM, WATER or any of their affiliates may have as a holder or beneficial owner of
shares as a matter of law with respect to the election of directors or otherwise, provided,
however, that WATER's duties hereunder are subject 1o its ability to comply with all
applicable federal and state securities laws and governing corporaie law,

()  Atthe Effective Time, the WATER Board of Directors shall support efforts
1o elect Thomas G. Keefe to the position of Chief Financial Officer of WATER.

Section 6.5 Third Party Consents; Guarantees. WATER will use its reasonable best
efforts to cooperate with STEAM and the Shareholders to obtain or cause to be obtained the

consent of any third party whose consent is required in order that the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement may be consummated without violation of any representation, warranty or
covenant made by any of them in this Agrecment. WATER will use its reasonable best efforts
to assist John D. Crawford in obtaining the release of his personal guarantees of STEAM
obligations following the Closing Date.

Section 6.6 Communications Laws. WATER will use its reasonable best efforts to
cooperate with STEAM to permit the transactions contemplated herein to be consummated in
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local telecommunications laws governing or
applicable to STEAM and its business.

Section 6.7 Adverse Events. Promptly after the occurrence, or failure to occur, of any
event, the occurrence or failure of which would (i) materially adversely affect, or could
reasonably be expected to materally adversely affect, the assets, properties, operaticns, business,
prospects, or condition (financial or otherwise) of WATER or the ability of WATER to perform
any of its obligations under this Agreement, or (ii) which, if known as of the date of this
Agreement, would have been required to be disclosed to STEAM or the Shareholders or (iii)
causes any representation or warranty of WATER contained in this Agreement or any Schedule
or Exhibit hereto to be untrue or inaccurate at any time from the date of this Agreement to and
including the Closing, WATER shall provide to STEAM all relevant information related thereto.
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Section 6.8 DBroker's Fees. WATER shall indemnify and hold harmless the
Shareholders in respect of any claim for brokerage or finder's fees or commissions with respect
to the uansactions contemplated herein by anyone claiming to have acted on behalf of WATER.

ARTICLE VI
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

Section 7.1 WATER and Acquisition Conditions to Closing. The obligations of
WATER and Acquisition hereunder are subject to the satisfaction of each of the following

conditions at or before Closing, the occurrence of which may, at the option of WATER, be
waived:

(a)  All representations and warranties of STEAM and the Shareholders in this
Agreement and any certificate, Exhibit or Schedule to be delivered pursuant hereto, which
Exhibit or Schedule shall not be amended by STEAM or the Shareholders without
WATER's prior written consent, shall be true and accurate in 2!l material respects on the
date made and on and as of the Closing, and STEAM and the Shareholders shall have
delivered to WATER a certificate to such effect dated as of the Closing Date;

(b)  There shall be no material adverse change in the operations of the business
of STEAM from the date hereof through the Closing Date;

(¢) STEAM and the Sharcholders shall perform and comply with all of their
obligations under this Agreement which are to be performed or complied with by each of
them prior to the Closing Date;

(d) STEAM and the Shareholders shall have delivered 1o WATER and
Acquisition all of the documents required to be delivered by them pursuant to this

Agreement.

() WATER and WATER's counsel shall approve the form and substance of
the documents delivered by STEAM and the Sharcholders pursuant to this Agreement;

()  There shall be no claims, actions or suits pending or threatened against
STEAM or the Shareholders that would restrict or prohibit STEAM or the Shareholders
from consummating the transactions contemplated herein;

() 100% of the outstanding STEAM Common shall have been voted in favor
of this Agreement ani the Merger;

(h)  Prior to the Closing, there shall not have occurred any damage, destruction
or loss not covered by insurance exceeding $ , or losses due to toll fraud exceeding
times the average monthly toll fraud losses for the six months preceding the

OMAHA-28409.3 35




month in which this Agreement is executed, adversely affecting the services, products,
properties, business operations or prospects of STEAM;

(i) If required by WATER in writing, each instrument or other agreement or
document under which STEAM has incurred or may incur debt or bank borrowings or
other performance obligations shall have been amended where necessary or appropriate,
without the assumption by WATER or STEAM of any additional obligation or cost and
in a manner satisfactory in form and substance to WATER and STEAM so as to permit
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement without a default or acceleration of any
obligation thereunder and to provide that neither WATER nor STEAM shall become
liable, contingently or otherwise, by reason of consummation of such trausactions, for
acceleration of payment or other performance of such debt, bank borrowings or
obligations;

(5)  STEAM's authorized and issued and outstanding capital stock shall be as
stated in Section 3.3 and STEAM shall have no agreement, obligation or commitment of
any character to issue shares of its capital stock, or debentures, bonds, or other evidences
of indebtedness convertible, in whole or in part, into shares of its capital stock;

(k) STEAM shall have delivered to WATER at the Closing certified copies of
resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of STEAM adopting and approving this
Agreement;

(1)  STEAM shall have delivered to WATER a Certificate of Good Standing (or
its equivalent) issued by the Virginia State Corporation Commission to the effect that
STEAM is duly incorporated and in good standing under the laws of the States, as of the
date of the Closing.;

(m) STEAM shall have furnished to WATER a copy of its Articles of
Incorporation, including all amendments thereto, which shall have been certified by the
Virginia State Corporation Commission as of a date reasonably near the Closing Date;

(n) STEAM shall have furnished to WATER a copy of the Bylaws of STEAM
which shall have been certified by the Secretary of STEAM as of the Closing Date;

(0) On or before the Closing (i) the Board of Directors or the Executive
Committee the.zof of WATER shall have ratified this Agreement and authorized the
transactions contemplated hereby and (ii) STEAM shall have taken, and the Shareholders
shall cause STEAM to have taken, all corporate action as may be necessary and
satisfactory to WATER in its sole discretion, to formalize, update, bolster and ratify the
past actions of the employees, officers, directors and Shareholders of STEAM;
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(p)  Prior to the Closing, STEAM shall have delivered to WATER its audited
balance sheet and the related statements of income and retained earnings and statements
of cash flows for the fiscal year ending April 30, 1997, reflecting results consistent with
those reflected on the interim unaudited financial statements provided by STEAM (o
WATER prior to the date of this Agreement;

(@  The Merger shall have been declared effective by the Virginia State
Corporation Commission; and

(r)  STEAM shall have delivered to WATER true and accurate certified copies
of centificates of public necessity and convenience or similar certificates of authority issued
by the Commission.

Section 7.2 STEAM and Shareholder Conditions to Closing. The obligations of
STEAM and the Shareholders hereunder are subject to the satisfaction of each of the following
conditions at or before Closing, the occurrence of which may, at the option of STEAM, be

waived:

(@  All representations and warranties of WATER and Acquisition in this
Agreement shall be true on the date bereof and on and as of the Closing, and WATER and
Acquisition shall have delivered to the Sharcholders a certificate 1o such effect dated as of
the Closing Date;

(b) WATER and Acquisition shall perform and comply with all of their
obligations under this Agreement which are to be performed or complied with by WATER
or Acquisition prior to or on the Closing Date;

()  WATER and Acquisition shall have delivered all of the documents required
to be delivered by them by this Agreement;

(d) STEAM and STEAM's counsel shall have approved the form and substance
of the documents delivered by WATER and Acquisition pursuant to this Agreement;

(e) There shall be no claims, actions or suits pending or threatened against
WATER or Acquisition that would restrict or prohibit WATER or Acquisition from
consummating the transactions contemplated herein; and

(N  The Merger shall have been declared effective by the Virginia State
Corporation Commission.
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Section 7.3 Mutual Covenants and Conditions to Obligations of STEAM and
WATER.

(a)  As soon as practicable afier execution of this Agreement, STEAM and
WATER shall join in applications to the Commissions requesting the approvals and
authorizations of each such Commission of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement. WATER and the Shareholders shall bear equally fees of the Commissions
charged in connection with or incidental to the filing and processing of the aforesaid
applications, as well as the cost of filing and processing. All other fees of legal counsel
and accountants and other “out-of-pocket”™ expenses shall be borne by the party incurring
them.

(b)  The obligations of STEAM, WATER and the Shareholders under this
Agreement are subject to the receipt prior to the Closing of Final Orders (as defined
below) of the Commissions approving and authorizing the transactious contemplated
herein. WATER, the Shareholders and STEAM shall not be obligated to consummate
such transactions if, in the judgment of WATER's Board of Directors or its Executive
Committee of the Board of Directors, there is contained in any such order a term,
condition or provision which is unduly burdensome. For the purposes of this
Section 7.3(b), a “Final Order™ shall mean an order of any Commission which is not
subject to rehearing by such Commission or to judicial review. The provisions of the
prior sentence notwithstanding, nothing in this Section 7.3(b) shall be construed to require
a party to seek judicial review of a Commission order if, upon reconsideration by the
Commission which issued such an order upon the motion of the party to this Agreement
or a third party, a party to this Agreement determines that such order contains a term,
condition or provision which is unduly burdensome.

(c)  Each of the parties to this Agreement agrees that if WATER, using its
reasonable judgment, determines that an application to any other state or federal agency
for its approval or author.zation of the transactions contemplated herein is required, then
WATER shall file such application and STEAM and the Sharcholders shall join in such
application with WATER and otherwise act in accordance with the provisions of
Section 7.3(a) of this Agreement with respect to such application.

ARTICLE VII1
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 8.1 Sharehciders’ Litigation Indemnity Agreements. The Shareholders,
jointly and severally, shall for a period of six years from the Closing Date indemnify STEAM,
WATER and its affiliates and hold its affiliates harmless from any and all claims, actions, suits,
liabilities, losses, damages and expenses of every nature and character (including, but not by way
of limitation, all reasonable attorneys’ fees and all amounts paid in settlement of any claim, action
or suit) (“Losses”) which arise or result directly or indirectly from matters set forth on
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Schedule 3.11 hereof, or which should have been listed on such Schedule, provided, however, that
the indemnification obligation contained in this Section 8.1 shaii not apply to any Losses which
arise or result directly or indirectly from any such matters unless a Notice of Claim (as defined
below) has been delivered to the Sharcholders prior to the sixth anniversary of the Closing Date.
If a Notice of Claim has been delivered prior to such anniversary date, any and all such Losses,
whether incurred prior to or after such anniversary date, shall be subject to indemnification under
this Section 8.1.

Section 8.2 Sharcholders’ Other Indemnity Agreements. All representations and
warranties made in this Agreement by the Shareholders are made to and for the benefit of both
WATER and STEAM. With respect to all such representations or warranties in this Agreement
(and/or in the Exhibits or Schedules attached hereto and the documents to be delivered by the
Sharcholders at the Closing), the Shareholders, jointly and severally, shall for a period of five
years from the Closing Date indemnify WATER and STEAM against and hold WATER and
STEAM harmless from any and all Losses which arise or result directly or indirectly from any
breach of any such representation or warranty, provided, however, that the indemnification
obligation contzined in this Section 8.2 shall not apply to any Losses which arise or result directly
or indirectly from any such matters unless a Notice of Claim (as defined below) has been
delivered to the Shareholders prior to the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date. If a Notice of
Claim has been delivered prior to such anniversary date, any and all such Losses, whether
incurred prior to or afier such anniversary date, shall be subject to indemnification under this
Section 8.2.

Section 8.3 WATER's Indemnity Agreements. With respect to all representations and
warranties made by WATER in this Agresment (and/or in the Exhibits and Schedules attached
hereto and the documents to be delivered by WATER at the Closing), WATER shall for a period
of five years from the Closing Date indemnify the Shareholders against and hold the Shareholders
harmless from any and all Losses which arise or result directly or indirectly from any breach of
any such representation or warranty, provided, however, that the indemnification obligation
contained in this Section 8.3 shall not apply to any Losses which arise or result directly or
indirectly from any such matters unless a Notice of Claim (as defined below) has been delivered
to WATER prior to the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date. If & Notice of Claim has been
delivered prior to such anniversary date, any and all such Losses, whether incurred prior to or
after such anniversary date, shall be subject to indemnification under this Section 8.3.

Section 8. No Limitation. The indemnity agreements in this Article VIII shall not
constitute a limitation on any of the warranties, representations, covenants or agreements herein.

Section 8.5 Procedure for General Claims. WATER shall give reasonably promypit
written notice to the Shareholders' Representative of any claim or event other than Third Party
Claims (as defined below) with respect to which WATER believes it or its affiliates is or may be
entitled to indemnification pursuant to this Article VIII and the Shareholders’ Representative shall
give reasonably prompt notice to WATER of any claim or event other than Third Party Claims
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with respect to which the Sharcholders believe they are or may be entitled to indemnification
pursuant to this Article VIII (in each case, a *Notice of Claim”™), provided, however, that the
failure to give notice as provided in this Section 8.5 shall not relieve the other party of its
indemnification obligations hereunder, except to the extent that the indemnifying party is
prejudiced by such failure to give notice. The Notice of Claim shall state the nature and basis of
said claim or event, the amount thereof to the extent known and the basis of such party's belief
that it (or its affiliates, in the case of WATER) may be entitled to indemnification with respect
thereto, including, without limitation, identifying the representation, warranty, covenant or
agreement which such party believes has been breached.

Section 8.6 Procedure for Third Party Claims.

(a) WATER, on the one hand, and the Sharcholders' Representative, on the
other, (the “Indemnified Party”), shall give reasonably prompt written notice to the other
(the “Indemnifying Party”) of any claim or event with respect 1o which the Indemnified
Party believes it or its affiliates is or may be entitled to indemnification pursuant to this
Article VIII resulting from any claim, action, suit or proceeding brought by any third party
in connection with any litigation, administrative proceedings or similar actions (including,
without limitation, claims by any assignee or successor of a party hereto or any
governmental agency) (collectively, “Third Party Claims™), together with an estimate of
the amount in dispute thereunder and a copy of any claim, process, legal pleadings or
correspondence with respect thereto received by the Indemnified Party, provided,
however, that the failurc of the Indemnified Party to give such notice shall not relieve the
Indemnifying Party of its obligations hereunder, except (0 the extent that the Indemnifying
Party is prejudiced by such failure to give notice. Within ten days of receipt of such
notice, the Indemnifying Party may, by written notice to the Indemnified Party, assume
the defense of such Third Party Claim through counsel of its own choosing (which counsel
shall be reasonably acceptable to the Indemnified Party) with all fees and expenses thereof
to be paid by the Indemnifying Party, in which event the Indemnified Party may participate
in the defense thereof at its sole expense, provided that such Indemnified Party shall have
the right to employ separate counsel to represent such Indemnified Party if, in such
Indemnified Party’s reasonable judgment, a conflict of interest between the Indemnifying
Party and such Indemnified Party exists with respect to such Third Party Claim, with all
fees and expenses of such separate counsel o be paid by the Indemnifying Party. If the
Indemnifying Party fails to assume the defense of such Third Party Claim by failing to
deliver a written notice of the Indemnifying Party's intention to assume such defense
within ten days after receipt of the initial notice thereof, or thereafter abandons or fails to
diligently pursue such defense (and only in such circumstances), the Indemnified Party
may assume such defense and the fees and expenses of its counsel will be paid by the

Indemnifying Party.

If the Indemnifying Party exercises its right to undertake the defense against any
such Third Party Claim as provided above, the Indemnified Party shall cooperate with the

OMAHA-28409.3 40




Indemnifying Party in such defense and make available to the Indemnifying Party all
peitinent records, materials, and information in its possession or under its control relating
thereto as is reasonably required by the Indemnifying Party, with all expenses incurred in
cormection therewith to be paid by the Indemnifying Party. Similarly, if the Indemnified
Party is, directly or indirectly, conducting the defense against any such Third Party Claim,
the Indemnifying Party shall cooperate with the Indemnified Party in such defense and
male available to the Indemnified Party all such records, materials and information in the
Indemnifying Party's control relating thereto as is reasonably required by the Indemnified
Party, with all expenses incurred in connection therewith to be paid by the Indemnifying
Party. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 8.6 to the contvary, however, if a claim
shall be made with respect 10 which the Indemnifying Party has agreed 1o assume the
defense thereof, the Indemnifying Party shall not thereafter be entitled to dispute, and
hercby agrees not to dispule, the Indemnified Party's right to indemnification therefor
pursuant to Article VIII hereof or any subsequent claims of the Indemnified Party with
respect to such Third Party Claim.

(b)  The Indemnifying Party shall not, without the written consent of the
Indemnified Party, (i) settle or compromise any Third Party Claim or conseiit to the entry
of any judgment which does not include as an unconditional term thereof the delivery by
the claimant or plaintiff to the Indemnified Party of a written release from all liability in
respect of such Third Party Claim, (ii) settle or compromise any Third Party Claim in any
manner that may adversely affect the Indemnified Party or (iii) upon the issuance of an
order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an arbitrator with respect to such Third Party
Claim, appeal or otherwise challenge such order. Upon the settlement or compromise of
any Third Party Claim, the order of a court of competent jurisdiction or arbitrator (if the
Indemnified Party has failed to consent to the appeal or challenge thereof) with respect
thereto or the final, non-appealable order of any appellate court (if the Indemnified Party
has consented to the appeal or challenge thereof) with respect thereto, as the case may be,
any resulting settlement, award, damages or judgment shall be paid (i) in the case of any
such Third Party Claim with respect to which the Sharcholders are the Indemnifying Party,
by the Shareholders, and (ii) in the case of any such Third Party Claim with respect to
which WATER is the Indemnifying Party, by WATER.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 9.1 Survival. The several representations and warranties of the parties
contained in or made pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed (0 have be.= made on and as
of the Closing and shall remain operative and in full force and effect until the fifth anniversary
of the Closing Date, regardless of any investigation or statement as to the results thereof, made
by or on behalf of any such party. Except for the provisions of Articles VIII, and Sections 9.6,
9.7, 9.9, 9.12 and 9.14, inclusive, of this Agreement, the several covenants and agreements of
the parties contained in this Agreement shall expire on the Closing Date and, except for the
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provisions of Sections 9.3, 9.4, 9.6, 9.7, 9.9, and 9.12, inclusive, of this Agreement, the several
covenants and agreements of the parties contained in this Agreement shall expire on the
termination or abandonment of this Agreement

Section 9.2 Termination of Transactions; Termination Fee.

(a) The transactions contemplated hereby may be abandoned, and this
Agreement terminated, upon notice, at any time afier the date of this Agreement, but not
later than the Closing, by:

(i) The mutual consent of the Board of Directors of STEAM and
WATER,; or

(ii) WATER, if WATER discovers facts or circumstances in the course
of Due Diligence, whether or not WATER was informed of the matter to which
such discovered facts and circumstances relate prior 1o the execution of this
Agreement, which are such that in the good faith judgment of WATER would
make it inadvisable to proceed with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement; or

(iii) WATER, if STEAM or any Sharebolder is in willful breach of any
of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements under this Agreement
in any material respect; or

(ivy STEAM, if WATER or Acquisition is in willful breach of any of its
, warranties, covenants or agreements under this Agreement in any
material respect; or

(v)  Either STEAM or WATER, if the consummation of the Merger
contemplated herein has been enjoined and such injunction is not subject to appeal
or if a Final Order which contains an unduly burdensome term, condition or
provision is issued and no appeal is taken therefrom; or

(vi) The Board of Directors of STEAM or WATER if the Merger
contemplated herein shall not have become effective on or before June 15, 1997.

(b)  Upon termination of this Agreement by STEAM pursuant to subsection (iv)
of Section 9.2(a), WATER agrees to pay STEAM a fee in immediately available funds
equalto$_________ .




(¢)  Upon termination of this Agreement by WATER pursuant to subsection (iii)
of Section 9.2(a), or upon withdrawal of the STEAM Board of Directors' recommendation
of the Merger pursuant to Section 4.12, STEAM agrees to pay WATER a fee in
immediately available funds equal to § ;

(d)  Upon termination of this Agreement by either STEAM or WATER pursuant
to subsection (v) of Section 9.2(a), the terminating party agrees (o pay the non-terminating
party a fee in immediately available funds equal to §_____

Section 9.3 Effect of Termination or Abandonment. If for any reason the
transactions contemplated hereby are terminated or abandoned pursuant to Section 9.2 hereof, all
written schedules and other information and all copies of material from the books and records of
any party heretofore furnished to any other party shall be returned promptly to the party
furnishing the same and, in such event, the provisions of this Agreement relating to confidential
information shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the abandonment of the
reorganization.

Section 9.4 Liabilities. In the event this Agreement is terminated and the contemplated
transactions are abandoned pursuant to Section 9.2 hereof, no party hereto shall have any duty or
liability to the other either for costs, expenses, loss of anticipated profits or otherwise, except with
respect to any liability or damages incurred or suffered by a party as a result of the breach by the
other party of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements set forth in this
Agreement.

Section 9.5 Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned by STEAM or the
Shareholders.

Section 9.6 Further Assurances. From time to time prior to, at and after the Closing,
the Shareholders, STEAM and WATER will and will cause their respective directors and officers
to execute all such instruments and take all such actions as the Shareholders, WATER or STEAM,
being advised by counsel, shall reasonably request in connection with the carrying out and
effectuating of the intent and purpose hereof and all tracsactions and things contemplated by this
Agreement including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of any and all confirmatory
and other instruments in addition to those to be delivered on the Closing, and any and all actions
which may reasonably be necessary or desirable to complete the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 9.7 Notices. All notices, demands and other communications which may or
are required 1o be given hereunder or with respect hereto shall be given by STEAM on behalf of
itself and the Shareholders, and by WATER on behalf of itself. All such notices, demands and
other communications shall be in writing, shall be given either by personal delivery or by
nationally recognized overnight courier or by telecopier, and shall be deemed to have been given
or made when personally delivered, one business day afier delivered to a nationally recognized
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overnight courier, postage prepaid and receipt requested, or one business day after transmission
by telecopier, receipt confirmed, addressed as follows:

(i) If to WATER:

with a copy to:

or to such other address as WATER may from time to time designate by notice to STEAM
, and the Shareholders;

(ii) If to STEAM or the Shareholders:

with a copy to:

or to such other address as STEAM and the Shareholders may from time to time designate
by notice to WATER.
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Section 9.8 [Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement
between the parties and supersedes and cancels any and all prior agreements between the partics
relating to the subject matter hereof.

Section 9.9 Rules of Construction. This Agreement shall be construed as follows:

(a)  except as otherwise defined in this Agreement, words shall be given their
commonly understood meaning in agreements of this nature, except that accounting terms
shall be given the meaning ascribed thereto by generally accepted accounting principles
and interpretations;

(b)  this Agreement has been negotiated on behalf of the parties hereto with the
advice of counsel and no general rule of contract construction requiring an agreement (o
be more stringently construed against the drafier or proponent of any particular provision
shall be applied in construction of this Agreement;

(c)  the captions of Articles and Sections hereof are for convenience only and
shall pot control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions of this

Agreement;

(d) throughout this Agreement, the masciline, feminine or neuter genders shall
be deemed to include the masculine, feminine and neuter, and the singular and plural, and
vice versa.

Section 9.10 Law Governing. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, but not including the choice of law
rules thereof.

Section 9.11 Waiver of Provisions. The terms, covenants, representations, warranties
or conditions of this Agreement may be waived only by a written instrument executed by the party
waiving compliance. Such waiver shall be authorized solely by the individual or his personal
representative, if the Shareholders, or the majority vote of the Board of Directors or the Executive
Committee of the corporate party waiving compliance or by officers authorized »y such Board or
Commitice. The failure of any party at any time or times (0 require performance of any provision
hereof shall in no manner affect the right at a later time to enforce the same. No waiver by any
party of any condition, o the breach of any provision, term covenant, representation or warranty
contained in this Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in any one or more instances shall
be deemed to be or construed as a further or continuing waiver of any such condition or of the
breach of any other provision, term, covenant, representation or warranty of this Agreement. The
representations and warranties of the Shareholders and STEAM, on the one hand, and WATER,
on the other hand, contained in this Agreement or in any certificate or other document delivered
pursuant hereto or in connection herewith prior to or at the Closing shall not be deemed waived
or otherwise amended or modified by any investigation made by any party hereto.
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Section 9.12 Successors. All of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and permitted assigns of WATER and of
STEAM and the successors and personal representatives of the Shareholders. For the purpose of
this Agreement, the term “successors™ shall include but not be limited to heirs, legatees, and
devisees, and the term “personal representatives™ shall include administrators, executors,
guardians, and conservators.

Section 9.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts,
and all so executed shall constitute one agreement, binding on all of the parties hereto,

notwithstanding that all parties are not signatory to the original or the same counterpar.

Section 9.14 Public Statements or Releases. STEAM, the Shareholders and WATER
cach agree not to make, issue or release any public announcement, statement or acknowledgment
of the existence of, or reveal the terms, conditions and status of, the transactions provided for in
this Agreement, without first attempting to the extent reasonably possible (and in all cases with
regard to written matters) to clear such announcement, statement, acknowledgment or revelation
with the other parties hereto. Each party agrees that it will not unreasonably withhold any such
consent or clearance from another party.

Section 9.15 Severability. In the event that any provision in this Agreement be held
invalid or unenforceable, by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be severable
from, and such invalidity or unenforceability shall not be construed to have any effect on, the
remaining provisions of this Agreement, unless such provision goes to the essence of this
Agreement in which case the entire Agreement may be declared invalid and not binding upon any
of the parties.

Section 9.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement and the obligations of
WATER hercunder shall operate exclusively for the benefit of the parties executing this
Agreement and their permitted successors and assigns and not for the benefit of any other person
or entity, including, without limitation, any other shareholder, creditor, employee or former
employee of STEAM and no such person or entity shall have any rights or remedies hereunder.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this day,

month and year first above written.

WATER, INC.

By:

Name:

Title:

WATER ACQUISITION CORP.

By:

Name:

Title:

STEAM, INC.

By:

Name:

Title:,
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SHAREHOLDERS:

John D. Crawford

Thomas G. Keefe

Donna L. Raoust

Glenn Callahan

Rick Davis

Layne Levine

Lisa Brown

Dean Young
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

X QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 16 (d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1834.

P«mwmmwm. 1986.
OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (9) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.

For the transition period from 0o
Commission File Number: 0-23172

NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Chartar)

Detawrare 77-1122018
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identi-
Incorporation or Organization) fication Numbuwr)
5285 Forida Street

Baton Rouge, Loulsiens 70801
Address of Principal Executive Offices, Including Zip Code

_{B504) 343-3125
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

indicate by check r ark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be

filed by Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the

preceding 12 months (or for such shorter periods that the Registrant was required to

;:;'whml.mdmhubmmhjmmmmmwunuforﬂum
ys.

Yes _X_ No__

There were 6,787,838 sheres of the Reglstrant's §.00C* per value common stock
issued and outstanding as of December 31, 18886,




pa/@9/1997 1@::1 8083493579 ND FhGcE

NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC. AND SUSSIDIANIES
index to Form 10-Q
For the Quartor Ended Docsmber 31, 1508

PART | - Financlal information
item 1. Financial L tstements:

Consolidsted Balence Sheats
December 31, 1008 and March 31, 1808 .......c0ovvvuenn T U s

Consolidatsd Statemants of Income
Three monthe and nine monthe ended Decomber 31, 1888 end 1996 ... ...... T T

Consolidated Ststementa of Cash Flows
Nine months ended December 31, 1000 end 1808 ... ........cccvvvvveviunen o

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . .. ... e errecanscassss R TR e S AR

e 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finsncial Condition
and Results of Operstions .. ... P P T e g era e
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NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC. AND SUSSIDIARIES

CORSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 1008 March 31.
Ansuditad | | -
ABSETS
mm oquivalents § 841,800 092,672
scoounts of 91 ’

1998, and March 31, 1008 respectively 0,401,601 9,320,997
Onthar receivablss 670,244 708,962
Deterred incoma tax ssost 580,664 o
Other currert gesets —t10.048 — 868231

Total current asssts 10,716.9%6 11,596,762
Property and equpment
. A%
and
?mmww 1,390,084 2,338,888
Furniture and fixtures —lalll182
3933104 4,402,340
Less scoumuisted deprecistion
Total property and eguipment, net 1,811,241 2,723,412
Customer codts, Net 8,022,037 §.002,702
Goodwill, :‘“ 2,878,700 3,358,081
Other intangibles, net 212,904 412,219
O s Sihaaa s
poasts
UABILUTEES AND STOCKHOLDERS® BOWATY BLLALLALE
Current lisbilites
Shart-term delbt anid Guent masturites of iong-term debet $ 1,117,848 202,280
Accounts payable 231,23 1,067,423
Accrued telecommunications cost 4,837,209 1.738.989
Othar sccruad lablifties 1,928,924 1,182,691
Customer deposits 132,820 176,210
Defarred income tax llability 0 242872
Current maturities of capitsl lssse obiigations 228, A2 ASE
Total current Rabiinies 8.341,083 6,261,230
Defarred incoms tax Lsbilty o 88,201
Long-Term Debt 2,834,718 2,880,138
Capital Loase Obligrtion 33,202 128,481
Saeries A convertible preferred stock - §.01 par value;
25,000,000 sharss authorized: no shares lssuad
and cutstanding st Decambaer 31, i996, and March 31, 1998. o 0
Common stock - §.0001 per velue: 20,000,000 shares

suthorized: 0,787,838 end 6,523,878 shares issusd

and outstanding st Decemnber 31, 1006 and March 31

19948, respeciively 77 #62
Agdivons! pald+n caphal 14,787,038 12,970,833
Tm SMTENGS 4,008,380) 1,108,871

veasury Stosk — 82280  .____iB2280M
Total lisbiftes end stockholders’ aguity 2218000084 12321118

Ses notes to consoiidetsd finenciel sFtatemants.

-:o
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NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOUIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Uinguudived)

Fabk lu

Thrae b onthe ended Hina Months erxbed
—m
1888 2 __IBRE nas T .
$14.384,600 911,465,271 044,029,082 031,294,438
10,201,738 8.208.629 30.8901.479 22,885,397
3,065,687 2,496,978 10,681.882 8,478,602
408, 941 370,763 1.320.803 771,487
1.880.408 (30,9820 2,883,482 143,014
20881822 110468288 48801208 20278280
18.177,134) 418,088 (5,671,687) 1,014,068
141,488 77,017 307,085 167.308
SRR . 4] 0 (22827
16,318.820) 341,368 (5,970,722 800,080
_(BE3001) 84781 _U0RIAGI 262814
(6.366.019) 248,877 (5,.201.838) 817.178
2 44388 _ 4700 __ 104811
LE20EG1S  A.202211 ME26M40E1 ASL2.G08

Ees notss to consolidetsd fnandel Ftstementa.
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NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - MERQER

On November 18, 1ﬂ.mmmmw.mmmwmmw1nh
mmuﬂuﬂ.ml“dmﬂhﬂﬂwnmmmml. The
Muwm“h-lwﬂm.ﬂwwmlum
pdmuﬂuﬂmh.uhnmuﬂuhﬁﬂhuﬂuﬂummdwm. Separate and

combined results of operations sre as follows:

Feor the Thwves monthe ended For the Nine months ended
Decomber :'J December 31,
k8 —lBRS Jafe 1888
Revenues:
Network $ 9,020,148 $ 5,202,719 929,220,114 924,190,488
uwi 5288538 —A122. 662 14803838 10870843
Combined L14304.088  ALL406271 £44.0200852 2311284430
income (Loss) before income taxes:
Network $(8,670,602) y 137,781 8(8,730,888) s 373,129
uwi —dB2.042 204887 __ 76801684 9 504801
Combined 410,318,020 A 410688 AGN70222)  A880080

Prior to the Merger, UWI utilized & Decernber 31 fiscal yser end. For purposes of the consolidsted belance sheets,
the March 31, 1996 and December 31, 1890 consolidated balance sheets of Network heve been consolidated with
the balance shests of UWI as of December 31, 1085 and December 31, 1998, respectively. The consolidated
statemaents of income of Network for the three month and nine month pericds ended December 31, 1888 and
December 31, 19886 heve been consolidetsd with the results of UWI for the three montha snd nine months ended
December 31, 1998 and September 30, 1998, respectively. The consolidated stataments of cash flows of Network
for the nine monthe ended December 31, 1898 end December 31, 1995 have bean consolidated with the results
of UWI for the nine monthe ended December 31, 1998 and September 30, 1885, respectively, The combined
companies of Network and UW1 ere hereinafter referred 1o a8 the “Company.”

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financisl statements included harein are unsudited and have been prapared in sccordance with generally
sccepted sccourting principles for interim financisl reporting and Securities and Exchange Commission regulationa.
Certaln reclassification have been made to the balance sheest dated March 31, 1884 in order to conform to the
balance shest dated Decamber 31, 18840. Censin information end footnote disclosures normally included in
financial statemants prepared In sccordance with gensrally sccepted accounting principles have been condensed
of omitted pureuant to such rules and regulations. in the opinion of management. the financisl statements reflsct
all sdjustmenta (of & normsl and recuring neture) which sre necessery to prasent feirly tha financlal position,
results of operstions and cash fiows for the inerim perioda.

NOTE 3 - ACQLRSITIONS

in May 1890, the Company purchased substantislly all of the customer bese of Universal Network Services, inc.
including the relatsd accourts recelvabls velued at $770.000 for epproxdmetely 243,780 shares of common steck
valued st epproximnetely §1,028,000, end cash of spprosdimatsly 03,028,000, Tha Company has initially sfoosted
approsdmatsly $2,100,000 w customsr base and §2.800,000 to goadwill with sstimated usetul lives of 7.8 years
and 30 years, respectively, The feliowing represents the proforms resuits of operetions of the Company and
Universal Network Barvices, inc. for tha Nine menthe ending December 31, 1888




Dscembar 31, 1880
Ravenues 045,012,903
Net income (Loss) AE.A80.301)
EP.S. Y
iiil’t‘!n‘ti-!;iigglig
F%iiii;ii;li! Ag » result, the final
purchage price sllocetions may dHter from the presantsd estmatss. To identify the intangibles acquired in thase
l\i'ii-iliﬁl!igi These projections utilire
iiiiiii%ili!%il!%g
intangibles and the reisted ussiul ives. i!‘i%!iiﬂ?i
results of the Company’s operations.
NOTE 4 - REDUCTION IN CARRYING VALUE OF CENTAIN ASSETS
giag;iiiu_;!:gggﬂ!uf!is.
reduction in the camying velus of intangible essets sesocisted with certsin scquisitions. The contractual
iiﬂfi.;li;ii‘t!;;li
October 31, 1998. As a result, Management revised estimatss of the recoversbility of these intangible assets
resulting in a non-cash, pretax charge of 94,080,000 On a pretax basis the write-down Included §2,740,000 for
cﬁii%fiiiil!ﬂli!i!iff
Tel, Inc., $774,000 for goodwill and #178,000 for customer acquisition costs associated with the purchase of
solected sssets from Colorado River Communicstions Corp., and $300,000 for customer siguisition custs
associsted with the purchese of selected sssets from Quantum Communications, Inc. The falr valuas of these
sssets were de.ermined by estimeting the present value of future cash flo v to be generated by these assets

Net income (loss) per share wes celoulsted besed on the following number of common and common equivalent
shares outstanding: 6,082,354 and 5,008,182 for the three months ended December 31, 1188 and 1885,
respectively, anc 8,038,100 and 5,370,561 for the nine months ended Decomber 31, 1996 end 183 4, respectively.
NOTE 6 - SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW BIFORMATION

For the nine months ended December 31, 1908 and _!.iﬂ-ﬁiﬂo&o_.ﬁ”i $88,000,

The following is a discussion of the consolidsted finencisl condition and ' esults of operations of the Company for

the three months and nine months ended December 31, 1008 and 1998 after glving effect 1o the mergers with
United Wats, inc, (UWI) and Long Distance Telscom, inc. dba Biue Ridge Telephone (Blue Ridge), which wers
accounted for s a pooling of kterests. Thy Information should be read In conjunction with the Company’s
Consolideted Financisl Statements and the Nites thereto.

Certaln statements set forth in Mansgement’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financlsl Condition and Results of
Opsrations, whith are not histerical feets, are forwerd-looking statemants under the Privats Securities Litigation
Raform Act of 1086 thet are subject 1o risks and uncenaintias that could cause sctusl results to differ materislly
from those set forth in the forwand-looking statemaents. Among the fectors that could cause sctusl future results
to differ materielly are competithve pressures, the timing end technique uesd in marksting by third-party distributors
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d LIGUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the nine monthe ended December 31, 1996, the Compeny’s cash flow provided by opersting activities wes
n,nl,ulmnmhwmﬂdhmm-!Iulmlhﬂmm—m
December 31, 1886. mmmwwwmnmmmumm
1997, resulting in cash used In investing activities of $3,210,774, compared to $2,817,008 cash used In
investing activities for the nine months ended December 31, 1088, These investments i customer base
scquisitions, office furniture and fixiures and leassheld improvemants relsted to the Company’s new operations
center. Included in investing sctivities is 704,383 of proceeds from the ssle of & DEX switch which ls being
Jeased beck to the Company. The Compeny has finsnced thess cepits! expenditures end scquisitions by wtilizing
Itz revolving ling of credit and tarm loan fecliity.

In May 1098, the Compeny entered into & §14,250,000 credit facliity with a bank which includes a revolving credit
tacility and term loan facility, Bomowings under the revelving credit portion of the facility may not exceed the
leasor of §11,000,000 minus any reserves the lender may deem eligible or 85 % of sligible recervables. Borrowings
under the revoiver will baar interest at the prime rete plus 0.75%. Borrowings and unpaid interest on the revolving
facility are repaysble in full st maturity of the facliity on June 1, 1899. The Compeny ls sllowed to bomow
43,250,000 under the term loen faciity, The term leen is repayabie in 30 equal monthly instaliments of $90,278
pius sccrued interest. The term loan will besr imterest at the prime rete plus 3%. Substantielly all of the sssets
of the Company are pledged as colisteral under the credit facility.

in May 1996, the Company purchased substantially all of the customer base of Universel Network Services, inc.
including the releted sccounts recaiveble valusd st $770,000 for spproximately 243,780 shares of common stock
valued at approsdmensly 81,828,000, and cash of spproxdmatsly 03,020,000. The Compeny has initially sllocated
spproximately $2,100,000 to customer base and $2,600,000 to goodwill with estimeted useful lives of 7.5 years

and 30 years, respectively.

~ On June 30, 1996, Network Long Distancs, inc. (Network), merged with Long Distence Telecom, inc. dba Blue

Ridge Telsphone (Blue Ridge) end in connection therewith lesued 337,008 shares of common stock for all of Biue
Ridge's common stock {the Merger). The Maerger wae sccountsd for 8s & pooling-of 4mterests end, sccordingly, the
Network financiel stetements for penods prior 1o the Merger have been restated *n inclhude the resuits of Biue Ridge
for all periods presented. Prior to the Merger, Blue Ridge opersted in the form of a partnership under the neme
*Telecommunicstions Vertures Limited Partnership Neo. 1 T/A Bius Ridge Telephone.” On June 17, 1998, Blue
Ridge changed 1o a corperete form of orgenization. Blus (\idge did not recognize income tax axpense for the
periods pressntsd bacsuss it tex otiributas flowed to Ra partners. The consolidsted statements of incomae include
s pro forma adjustment to reflect & provision for income taxes on » combined besis as if Blue Ridge had been
subject to incCome tmx. \

On November 15, 1998, Netweork Long Distance, inc. (Netwerk), merged with United Wats, Inc. (UWI) and in
connection therewith issued 2,277,780 shares of commen stock for all of UWi's common stock (thy Mergerl. The
Marper wes ecoounted 10r es 8 pooling-of-interests snd, accordingly, tha Network financial stataments for periods
prior to the Merger have bsen reststed to include the resuits of UWI for all periods presented. Prior to the Merger,
UW! utiized 8 Decamber 31 fiscal year end. For purposss of the consclideted balance sheets, the March 31, 18008
and December 31, 1008 congolidated belance sheets of Network have been consolidsted with ths belance sheets
of UWI a8 of Decambaer 31, 1098 and December 31, 1998. The.constlideted statements of income of Network
for the three month and nine month periods ended Decernber 31, 1090 and December 31, 1085 have bsen
consolidated with the results of UWI for the three months and nine menths ended December 31, 1998 and
September 30, 1985, reapectively. The corsclideted statements of cash flows of Network for the nine months
ended December 31, 1808 and December 31, 1998 have been consolidatad with the results of UWI for the nina
months ended December 31, 1998 and Septemnber 30, 1898, respectively.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

thtmnﬂ.uﬂ“ﬂdﬂ.m“ﬁnﬂ-ﬂﬂhnwo 914,384,688,
compared w0 911,405,271 for the third flece! quarter of 1880, an Inoresss of 26.5% and 44,020,962 for the nine
montha ended Decamber 31, 1900 compared to 031,204,438 for the same peried in 1995, an increase of 40.7%.
muhmmummmmwmmmmmumm
mde;mmmmmmmwﬁmmmum
Mthamﬂanuﬂmlthm

Cost for telecommunications for the thres monthe ended December 31, 1888 were 910,201,738, representing
-mmdnnm70.!!dm“dhﬂm.ln.wﬂnﬂ.!lummﬂmnﬁ
in 1995, For the nine month period ended December 31, 1890, cost of telecommunications were 930,901,479
MMIRMMhtMMTMH.HdmmmMWH
1998. This reduction 8¢ 8 percantage of revenuss is o refisction of economiss of scale resulting from the incrassed
mmmmmmmnmnm-m“mm.

mmummmum.u?mmmmmmn.uu
mpresenting 20.8% of revenue. This compares with SGAA expense of 02,490,076 for the thres months ended
December 31, 1995, representing 21.8% of revenues. SGAA for the nine month period ended December J1,
1998 was §10,081.064 or 24.2% of revenus compared to #,479,802 or 20.7% of revenues for the same period
last year. The Incresses ars associstsd with one-time charges relsting to the mergers with UWI1 end Blus Ridge
and an increase in personnel costs sssocisted with a bulld up of cperstions in anticipation of future revenuse growth.

Depreciation sno amortizstion wmense wes $408,0411or the three months ended December 31, 1888, representing
3.2% or revanuss. This i compared to $370,763, or 3.2% of revenue, for the seme period in 1888, For the nine
month period ended December 31, 1096, depreciation end amortizstion expenss wes 01,326,803 or 3.0% of
reverue compared 1o §771,487 or 2.8% of revenus for the same period last yeer. This incresss is related to the
smorntizstion of tha customer bases scquired, primerily thoss scquired from Universsl Network Services, Inc. end
Vaiue Tel, inc., and from depreciation of additional equipmem scquired during the periods.

The provision for losses on socounts receivable for the thwee month poriod ended December 31, 1086 wae
91,088,480 or 13.8% of neveruse. This compered to §(30,082) or (0.271% of revenues for the ssme ariod in
1095. For the nine month period ended December 31, 1898, the provision for losses on accounts recelvable w s
02,683,483 or 6.1% of revenuse compsered to $143,314 or 0.40% of revenues for the same period in 1885. The
increases in the provision for loesss on ecoounts receivabile is primarity sssocisted with the Conany’s on-going
effort 1o cleanup end de-emphasize its wholessle operationa in order to reduce the Company's axposurs to this
lower margin sector of the business, the write-off of uncollectible scocounts receivable scquired in previous
scquisitiona, end the spplication of tha Company’s revisesd policies sssociated with the collection «.nd write-off of
sccounts recelvable.

During the three month period ended December 31, 1998, the Company incurred non-Cash charges relsted to a
reduction in the camying value of intangible sesets associated with certain scquisitions. The contractual
sgreements refsted to the Company’s scquisition of cartain customaer | ases required certain re-evaluations a8 of
October 31, 1800, As o result, menagement’s revissd estimates of the recoverability of thess intangible assets
resuitad in & non-cash, pretax charge of $4,080,000. On » pretax basis the write-down Included §2,740,000 for
goodwill and $60,000 for customer scquisitio costs associsted with the purchase of selected sseets from Value
Tel, Inc., §774,000 for goodwill and a $178,000 for customer scquisition costs assoclsted with *he purchess of
selected asssts from Coloredo River Communications Corp.. and $300,000 for customer scquisition costs
sssocigted with the purchase of selectsd assets from Qantum Communications, inc. In light of these reductions,
the Company has reviewed s mergera and ecquisitions progrem In an effort 1o reduce its s posure to such
reductions ss they may relate 1o any other scquisitons including purchese price sllocetions and amortizstion

Net income (loss) for the three months ended December 31, 1900 was #(5.385,818), compared to 240,577 for
the same period in 1686. For the nine month period ended December 31, 1888, net income was §(6,281,538)
compared t $817,178 for the same period last yesr. This decreass in net income is sttributable t; the reduction
in the carrying velua of certain aseets snd from the increesss in eetiing, conerel, and sdministrstive sxpenses and
tha provision for lossea on socounts recsivebile.

i
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PART i
Other infermation
ftem 1: Lagal Procasdings
None
hem 2: Chaoges in Securities
None
tem 3: Dafaylt Uson Seniot Sacurities
None
hem 4: Submission of Matiacs to & Yota of Security Helders
None
hem 5: Qthat infacmation
None

hem 6: Exhibits aod Current Beparia.on Form B
1] Exhibita - None.
o) Current reports on Form 8K

During the guerter ended Decambar 31, 1080, the Company filed the following current reporis:
Current report on Form 8-K/A deted September 10, 1590, filed on November 12, 1890, reporting
under item 7 Rnancisl Statementa, Current report on Form B-/A deted Septembar 0, 1988, filsd
on Novamber 16, 1888, reporting under ltem 7 Financisl Statements, Current report on Form B-X
dated November 15, 1908, filsd on November 28, 1000, reporting under item 2 Acquisition or
Disposition of Asssts, Cusvent Form S-KJ/A dated November 16, 1988, flled on November 27, 1888,
reporting under itern 7 Finenclal Statements. After the quarter ended December 31, 1988, the
Company filed a Current report on Form 8-K/A datad November 15, 1990, filed on Jenuary 14, 1897,
reporting under item 7 Finsnclsl Statements.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalt by the undersigned, thersunt2 duly suthorized.

NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC.

Distod: Faswory 13 1987 By: (aMarn L Baciar
Mare |. Bocker, Exsoutive Vice President
ond Chiet Operating Officer




EXHIBIT "C"

EASTERN TELECOM
INTERNATIONAL, INC.
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

INCOME STATEMENT
AND BALANCE SHEET
DATED JANUARY 31, 1996
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EASTERN TELECOM INTERNATIONAL CORP.

ND

BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS. )
FIRST UNION NATIONAL - DEPOSITORY §361,163.087
FIRST UNION MATTONAL - DISBURS .696,627.67)
FIRST UNION - CAP AC 496,240.62
PIRST UNION - PAYROLL (13,129.08)
PIRST UNION ETC OF DC (15,244.21)
*IRST UNION ETC OF DC PETTY CASH 621.
CRESTAR GENERAL 203.89
E-TRADE MARKET 36,464.21
STOCX INVESTMENTS 49,050.00
TOT. CASH AND MARKETABLE SECURITIES

A/R ONE PLUS 3,822,683.74
A/R USBI - ONE PLUS 35,497.63
A/R AMERICAN EXPRESS 4,647.54
A/R ZERO PLUS DIALING -~ 140,902.18
A/R ZERD PLUS DIALING - ONE PLUS 40,102.96
A/R RECEIVABLES FUNDING CORP (RFC) 276,176.13
A/R RECEIVABLES FUNDING 283,717.25
A/R CREDIT RESERVE §7,737.12
A/R OFFSET RESERVE 20,868.56
A/R SERVICE FEES 57,737.12
xévzsrunuw IN ADVANCED CLIENT SOLUT 0.00
INVESTMENT IN FREEDOM USA 0.00
A/R MISCELLANEOUS 6,227.83

TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

LESS ALLOWANCE FOR BAD DEBT,
UNBILLABLES,CREDITS AND FEES
ONE PLUS - DIRECT BILLED
ONE PLUS - LEC BILLED
ONE PLUS - RFC
ZERO PLUS - HOTELS
ZERO PLUS -~ ONE PLUS

NGTES RECEIVABLE JDC -

NOTES RECEIVABLE

NOTES RECEIVABLE=~D LERS
TOTAL NOTES RECEIVABLE

INVENTORY - PPD CALLING CARDS
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

(267,587.86)
(10,618.73)
(17,220.17)
(47,922.87)

(7,273.13)
114,885.12
6,000.00
6,000.00
02-24-97
6:43pm

Lt e/

Por the Nine Months Ended January 31, 1997

218,743.03

4,754,298.06

4,333,675 30

126,885.12

7,500.20
7,853.15

e . S S

4,694,656.60

fmx. s

-
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EASTERN TELECOM INTERMATIONAL CORFP.
BALANCE SHEET

January 31, 1997

ALER & T-1 EQUIPMENT $909,050.00
HICLES 2.000.00
RNITURE, FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT 240,268.20
MPUTER EQUIPMENT 526,750.81
MPUTER SOFTWARE 307,783.11
‘RCUIT CONNECTIONS 277,126.08
‘ASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 86,831.94
"EMENS SWITCH 871,748.60
JRTHERN TELECOM SWITCH 1,273,687.45
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 4,495,216.16
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (2,091,622.56)
2,403,593.63
IHER ASSETS:
JAN FEES 39,027.97
SCUMULATED AMORTIZATION (17,985.54)
EPOSITS 54,218.40

TOTAL ASSETS 7,173,513.06
pp—— L T L]
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EASTERN TBLECOM INTERMATIONAL CORP.
BALANCE SHEET

January 31, 1997

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY -

RRENT LIABILITIES:

'COUNTS PAYABLE $1,362,357.85
)1 - K PLAN 7,031.04
YROLL TAXES PAYABLE 58,455.31
[ILD SUPPORT/GARNISHMENT PAYABLE 328.07
0SS RECEIPTS TAX PAYAWLE 323,331.81
'"DERAL EXCISE TAX PAYABLE 128,084.30
‘CRUED HOTEL COMMISSIOMS :{.;::;;
' -

‘CRUED SALES COMMISSIONS
RUED TRANSMISSION

1,02:.!5! .00

pe

*CRUED OPERATOR SERVICES ,526.84

*CRUED PAYROLL 137,316.68

iCOME TAXES PAYABLE 66,306.56
456,315.36

JRRENT PORTION OF LT DEBT
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
IHER LIABILITIES:

3,654,795.66

/P TELECOMMUNICATIONS FINANCIAL 358,215.51
/P NELCO 25,297.96
/P INSIGHT FINANCIAL 75,000.00
OVERED CALL OPTION 0.0
/P AT&T 6,500.00
/P M&SD FIMANCIAL 787,196.92
gnmm PERLIN 210,000.00
PORTION OF LT DEBT (456,315.36)
TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES 1,005,895.03
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,660,690.69
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 547,169.00
QUITY:
OMMON STOCK 1,732.00
REFERRED STOCK 307,850.40
'REASURY STOCK AT COST (550,000.00)
FT EARNINGS TO PREFERRED (307,850.40)
.ETAINED EARNINGS 1,520,639.93
'URRENT YEAR Mlmgﬂll] 1,222,700.40
INREALIZED HOLDING GA ;4.502.“}
YYHER DIVIDENDS PAID (232,916.66)
TOTAL EQUITY 1,965,652.37
7,173,513.06

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

e S S S S 638 S 63

-
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FASTERN TELECOM INTERMATIOMAL coRr.
Consol idated

For the Nine Renthe Ended Jenuary 31, "

bt .

¥ DLETANCE: O+

G DIITANCE: 1+

e DISTANCE: 1+ LEC BILLED
w8 DLSTAMCE: 1+ INTERMET
oGIR INCORE

ATE PEES

SERATOR SERVICE REVEMUM
ML TINE [NCORE

MTEREST INCORE

IVIDEND IMCORE

ENTAL InCOME

| TOTAL REVENUE

LESS; CUSTORER REFUNDE

CREDITS & ALLOVANCES = 1+

NET REVENUT

OIT OF REVENIL:

HC CHARGES

LA.B.5. INTERSTATE uBi
LA.0.8. INTRASTATE USE
ONTRACT OPERATOR SERVICEN
omG 01T CHAMIES

/0 RECURRING CIRCULT CHA®GES
KTERNET RECURRING CHARGES
NTEANET NON-RECURALNG CH/ RSES

WATERIALS & REPAIRS
08T OF PAGERS
UsTondR PASER USASE
03T OF DERIT CARD MATERLALS
INSTALLATION CMARGES
AEDR

SRELGNT /SHLPP LNG
JALIBAT oW PRI

JAD pEAT

MOLLLABLE

SILLING FEES

fym g FEES
JPRECIAT [0

TOTAL cOST OF REVEMM

GROIS PROFLT

cusmeT z r.T.0. I
§7,220.95 3.6 81,200,608 .34 7.51
1,949,020.55 93,63 14,007, Y1957 B.
TN 0. &b, 36704 0.
1,78.8 0.2 0.7 0.0x
.67 1.4 195,.516.05 1.2
7808, 74 0.42 8,532,354 0.4
15,1149 0.7 1w, 5.9 1.1
0.0 0. 14,988,131 0.7
1,063.28 0.1x nsE.n 0.2
0.0 o.@ 880,00 0.
0.c0 0.&= 120,194.54 0.
2,008,062, 57 100.0¢ 15,978,867 100.ax
0.0 0. (5,616.35) 0.0K
(20, 406.85) =108 (107,294 28) . T8
2,088,6.12 .0x 15,045,411.08 ”w.u
3.0 0.0x §,8.62 0.
m,m.u 10.1% 1,095,070 1.m
M4, 600. 6 5.5 25,000, % ..
3,700.% 0.2 $8,734.68 0.4
57,4800 NS 47,10 .
¥4,577.10 3.4 $3.I17.% .:
3,987.50 0. 28,620.08 0.
0.0x 900 .00 0.2
7.9, 0.3x 5,70.9 0.4%
1,080.00 0.1% &,140.00 0.0
0.00 0.0x 2,179.54 0.08
&2,004,.80 2.0% 78,074.08 1.7
1,129.0 0.9 32,7534 2.0
3,682.05 0. n,572.13 0.2
1,952.%0 0.1¥ 117, 134.00 0.
13.393.00 0.4 @, m.em 0.
3,730.00 0. 3,7150.00 0.0x
11,300.50 0.5% &2,007.58 0.2
§,080.92 0.z 4,9%7.79 ng
0.0 0.0x wi.Te 0.0x
1,658.02 0.12 7,937 0.2
&, 0.7 .= &85, 804 . 06 [ - 4
”».m [ - 14,300.9% 0.1
5.31.41 0.2 2.0 0.4%
1,002 0. 13,4T7.26 0.1%
4&2.803.37 i.n ¥90,008.07 3.ax
1,208,048, 12 §1.75 10,00, 1.1 .8
™ .NT.60 . 5,804,000, 97 urn
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ISURANCE-LIPE, HEALTH & au'0
MEREST EXPDNSE

BAL FEED

SCELLANEOUS DXPENSE
'FICE SUPPLIES

PLOTEE PAGERS
OROT10oNS

HTAGE

\YROLL TAXES

INT - OFFICE

T - EQUIPRENT
ICRUITMENT SEAVICES
WARIES - OFFICERS
ALARIES - OFFICE STAPF

ALARIES = SALES ADRINISTRATION

ALARIES - SALES STAFP
WLES STAFF INCENTIVES
SWORARY OFFICE CLERK
SCAUED PAYROLL EXPENSL
AXES AMD LICEMSES
ILEPHONE DXPENSE
WVEL DOFENS
WAVEL - REALS
WAINTMG [ SEMIMARS
ARRANT COST 1+

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENIEI

8803493579 ND
CASTERN TELECOM LNTERRATIONAL CORP.
Consel jeated
for (ha Wino Renthe Gnded Jemary n, W

CutaENT 1 1.7.0. 1
5,755 0. 8. m.n 0.
16,403.34 0.m 147, 742,09 0.%
0.0 o.:= ,%0.00 0.z
3,206.12 0. 20,93.99 0.1
2,0m.73 0.1 11,008.20 0.11
74,00 o@ n,a3.% 0.13
'l‘ '-. .l- ...
%408, 02 o.n 108,029.30 0.7
1,882.00 0.1 19,2647 0.13
.12 o.m= §,427.06 0.2
1,0m.48 0.1% 5,00.7 0.08
$a.» 0.0 1,097,460 0.0z
&, 00,9 oz 36,408.67 0.2
11,683.1 0.: 16,157.40 0.1%
2,089.M 0. $1,100.87 0.2
nwm.es 1.2 263,027 1.68
0.00 0.0 nm.n 0.5%
354,41 0. 3,357 0.0%
8,508 0.a %,97.3 0.4
.60 0. 8,457.74 0.1
0.00 0.® 1%, 0.5 0.1
13,7953 om 101,600.0 0.6
n.or.n 1.8 00,718 1.43
30,545.% 1.2 5 8T8 1.42
1,481.51 0.1z 15,118.08 0.1%
7,990.00 0.4 7R 0.5
13,300.79 1.1 05,2014 1.3
104,220, 27 s.;: a0 bR
2,554.40 1. 182,253.10 1.12
122,754.08 S0 1,009,908 6.6
,4T2. % .z 767,003, on
§,544.19 [ -4 nmn 0o
€42, 376.38) -3. (2,048.30) 0.0z
191.5% 0. 13,704.38 0.1
2,50.08 1.3 o8,0m.19 1.53
2.875.%0 01X a2,651.9% 0.1
1,903.52 0.1 49,142.00 0.1
0.00 o0.08 T04. 4d 0.0x
0.00 o= 1,706.00 0.0z
519.250.4 26.95  4,800,043.26 30.11
240,140,998 12.5t 1,085,208.7 6.8
§5.45 0.0 (131, 097.54) 0.1
2,890.97) 0.1 8, 9%.13) 0.2
242,987.%0 12.6  1,222,700.40 7.7
243,997.30 12.6x 1,212,700.40 .75
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NOWALSKY & BRONSTON, L.L.1.
LEON L NOWALSKY ATTORNEYS AT LAW
MONICA R BORNE

3500 NORTH CAUSEWAY BOULEVARD
SUITE 1442
METAIRIE, LOUISIANA 70002

| ¥4 a.'“"- el

FLE COPY

HENIAMIN W BRONSTON

FDOWARD I' GOTHARD
O oy

Writer's Direct Dial Number

TELEIMHONE (504) R32- 1984 (504) 832-1008
FAUSIMILE: (504) B3] 0892
E-MAILL NowalBrondiaol com
j=T
April 23, 1997 4705/
ol DATE
VIA AIRBORNE EXPRESS DS13Sm  APR 2917

Executive Secretary

Florida Public Service Commission
2450 Schumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32389-0850

Re: Joint Application of Network Long Distance, Inc.
and Eastern Telecom International Corporation
for Approval of a Merger

Dear Sir;

On behalf of Network Long Distance, Inc. and Eastern Telecom International,
enclosed please find an original and twelve (12) copies of the referenced Application. Also
enclosed is a check in the amount of $257.00 to cover the filing fee.

Please date stamp and return the enclosed extra copy of this letter in the envelope

provided.

Please call me should you have any questions concerning this filing. Thank you for

your assistance with this matter.

CMU

CTR
EAG

LEG

LM

R =~
- Sincerely,
— Edward P. Gothard
—EPGH
jciosures
Chatk rachived with Mling and

forwarded to Piscal for deposit,
Frmfl_!o forwsrd n copy of check
10 RAR wilh proc! of drposit,

T

[ |
— &

of perzon who forwarded check: DOCUMENT MUMPTR-DATE

04302 APRIG

FPSC-RECORCS/REPORTING

-






